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Management Discussion and Analysis

B ER W T

Business Review

In view of the bare 7% in economic growth in the first quarter of 2015 and the several
reductions of benchmark deposit and loan interest rates and reserve requirement
ratio, China faced increasing pressure of decline in economy. Due to the downturn in
export and import for several months, the weak internal and external demand not only
weakened the drive for economic growth but also suppressed the transactions in the
real estate market.

Currently, the Group’s key business is investment in properties in Shanghai, China.
Although industries related to real estate are affected by the slowdown of economic
growth and has become weak, due to the rigidity in rent and the prime location of the
financial centre in China, the rental income of the Group’s investment properties still
shows a consistent growth. Not only does it improve the gross profit of the Group, the
increase in the fair value of properties also contributes to the capital gain of the Group.

As the research report stated, despite the certainty of the downward trend of the
Chinese economy, the strength of government policy causes the demand for office
in Shanghai to remain strong. Although there will be plenty of new supply of office
in Shanghai, the growing demand for property leasing from domestic tenants will
effectively restrain the drop in rent. The rent of office in Pudong is expected to rise
consistently while the rent in Puxi is expected to remain stable.

Prospects

As Chinese economy is currently undergoing the structural transitioning from rapid
growth to medium to high speed growth, the government also strengthens its policy
for stable growth despite the downward pressure on economy. It is believed that the
favourable development of the Chinese economy will continue as various reform and

development policies and measures are gradually in place.

Shanghai is currently speeding up the construction of the Free Trade Zone. In
additional to increasing the transaction categories and instruments of financial
commodities and aspiring to become transaction platform of international financial
market, the pilot of three important components in the financial reform, namely
onshore and offshore two-way investment, expansion of free trade account functions
and the international board of financial market, is also expected to take place in the
Shanghai Free Trade Zone this year. With such remarkable advantages, Shanghai
is at a much better position to attract the attention of investors compared to other
regions in China. It also brings new opportunities for investment in office properties in
Shanghai.

Looking forward, despite the signs of slowdown in economic growth in China, we
are still very confident in commercial property leasing in Shanghai under the policy
requirements of “proactive in adapting to new norms of economic development,
maintaining economic operation in a reasonable scope and putting changed methods
and structural adjustments as higher priority” by the Chinese government.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Financial Review

The Group’s consolidated turnover amounted to HK$1,780,000 (2014:
HK$1,350,000). During the year, profit before taxation for the year was
HK$1,185,000, compared to loss before taxation of HK$6,836,000 in the
corresponding period of last year.

Gross profit for the Group increased from HK$1,164,000 in 2014 to HK$1,708,000 in
2015, while the gross profit margin increased from 86% to 96% due to higher profit
margin for rental income.

Total operating costs were approximately HK$7,155,000 (2014: HK$8,051,000).
Compared to last year, the operating costs have decreased by 11%.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company and earmings per share for the year were
HK$655,000 (2014: loss of HK$7,360,000) and HKO.3 cents (2014: loss per share of
HK3.8 cents (restated)) respectively.

Financial resources, liquidity and capital structure

As at 31 March 2015, total assets of the Group amounted to HK$64,803,000
(2014: HK$59,015,000). Current assets amounted to HK$21,041,000 (2014:
HK$15,870,000), of which HK$20,598,000 (2014: HK$15,427,000) were cash and
bank deposits. Current liabilities of HK$3,682,000 (2014: HK$3,972,000) mainly
comprised of trade payables, receipts in advance, other payables, deposit received
and accruals and amount due to the spouse of a director. Current ratio of the Group
was 5.7 (2014: 4.0) and gearing ratio of the Group was 1.0 (2014: (2.0)) representing the
Group’s borrowings divided by total equity comprising equity attributable to owners of
the Company and reserves.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$17,359,000 (2014: net current assets of HK$11,898,000).

Share consolidation and change in board lot size

The Shareholders approved the Share Consolidation at the 2014 Annual General
Meeting on the basis that (i) every ten (10) issued and unissued Existing Ordinary
Shares of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company will be consolidated into
one (1) Consolidated Ordinary Share of HK$1.0 each and (i) every ten (10) issued
and unissued Existing Preference Shares of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the
Company will be consolidated into one (1) Consolidated Preference Share of HK$1.0
each.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEER W RS ()

Financial Review (continued)
Foreign exchange risk
The Group’s main operations are in the PRC and Taiwan and its income and

expenses are transacted in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and New Taiwan Dollar (‘NT$”)
respectively. Accordingly, it has no significant exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Charges on assets and contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had no charge or pledge of assets. Details of
contingent liabilities are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

Capital commitments

At the end of reporting period, the Group had no material capital commitment.

Management and employees

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had 23 employees, including the Directors of the
Company. Salaries of employees are primarily based on prevailing market salary
levels and year end bonuses are granted at the end of each calendar year. Other
employees’ benefits include mandatory provident fund, medical cover and other
insurance.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong, aged 60, is an Executive Director and a founder of the Group.
Mr. Wong has over 30 years’ experience in sales and marketing, in particular in
electronics and computer industries. Mr. Wong was the Chairman of Association of
Electronic Components Industry of Taipei from 1990 to 1993. He oversees the sales
and marketing strategies of the Group. Mr. Wong graduated from the Department of
Industrial Management of Tamsui Oxford College in Taiwan with a diploma and a MBA
of the University of South Australia.

Mr. Lin En Fu

Mr. Lin En Fu, aged 59, is currently the Chief Operational Officer of the Company. He
holds a master degree in Economics of the University of Kansas and had served for
First Commercial Bank of Taiwan for 21 years.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Mr. Lin Chien Hsin, aged 61, graduated from the Economic Faculty of Taiwan
University and had been involved in research studies in Harvard and Standford
Business Schools. He was the Vice President of Holtek Semiconductor Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. in 1999. Besides, he was also the Chief Financial Officer of United
Microelectronics Corporation from 1983 to 2001, a semi-conductor manufacturer
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Taiwan, and had been working
there for about 18 years.

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen

Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen, aged 50, graduated from the department of Broadcasting and TV
of Shih Hsin University in Taiwan. She was the executive secretary of Franklin Advisors
Inc. and subsequently worked as the Vice President of Le Kao Co., Ltd. Ms. Hsieh has
extensive experience in the field of administration and management.

Ms. Wu Chiao Ru

Ms. Wu Chiao Ru, aged 47, graduated with a Master Degree in Management from
Yuan Ze University in Taiwan. She was the assistant to president of Lung Hwa
Electronics Co., Ltd. from 2002 to 2003, and subsequently the Vice President of Chi
Fu Jong Hua Co., Ltd. Ms. Wu has extensive experience in the field of public relations
and consultancy.
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Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)

EEET ()

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chu Meng Chi

Mr. Chu Meng Chi, aged 50. He obtained a bachelor degree in business
administration from the Taiwan National Sun Yat-sen University. Mr. Chu has over 20
years’ experience in the field of corporate administration and financial investment.

Ms. Chan Mei Sze

Ms. Chan Mei Sze, aged 50, is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. She has over 23 years’ accounting and finance experience in various
industries in Hong Kong.

Ms. Lin Yan Jenny
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, aged 44, has a master degree from the New York Institute of
Technology-Vancouver in Canada. She has over 20 years’ management experience
in various industries.
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Corporate Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

The Company endeavors to comply with all the code provisions on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in the GEM Listing Rules by establishing a formal and
transparent procedure to protect and maximise the interests of shareholders during
the year ended 31 March 2015.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of conduct and the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on behalf of shareholders.
The Board is of the view that it is the Directors’ responsibility to create value for
shareholders as a whole and safeguard the best interests of the Company and the
shareholders by discharging its duties in a dedicated, diligent and prudent manner on
the principle of good faith.

The Board comprises a total of eight Directors, with two Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong (CEO and Chairman) and Mr. Lin En Fu; three Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Chien Hsin, Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen and Ms. Wu Chiao Ru and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu
Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the
view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines.
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Corpor‘ate Governance Report (Continued)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The primary functions of the Board include:

)

(i)

(V)

(V)

Thiz Technology Group Limited

deciding on the overall strategies, overseeing operational and financial
performance and formulating appropriate policies to manage risk exposure
associated with realising the strategies and goals of the Group;

being held accountable for the internal control system of the Company and
responsible for reviewing its effectiveness;

being ultimately responsible for preparing financial accounts and discussing the
performance, financial conditions and prospects of the Company in a balanced,
clear and comprehensible manner. These responsibilities are applicable to
quarterly, interim and annual reports of the Company, other price sensitive
announcements published according to the GEM Listing Rules and disclosure
of other financial information, reports submitted to regulatory bodies and
information disclosable under statutory requirements; and regularly reviewing
its own functions and the powers conferred upon Executive Directors to ensure
appropriate arrangements are in place;

whilst Executive Directors, who oversee the overall business of the Company,
are responsible for the daily operations of the Company, the Board is
responsible for affairs involving the overall policies, finance and shareholders of
the Company, namely financial statements, dividend policy, significant changes
to accounting policies, annual operating budgets, material contracts, major
financing arrangements, principal investment and risk management strategy;

the management is well informed of its powers and duties with clear guidelines
and instructions, in particular regarding situations under which reporting to the
Board is necessary and matters that require the approval of the Board before
any decisions or commitments can be made on behalf of the Company; and

the full Board meets at least four times a year, at approximately quarterly
intervals, to review the financial performance, results of each period, material
investments and other matters of the Group that require the resolution of the
Board. Simultaneous conference call may be used to improve attendance
when Individual Director cannot attend the meeting in person. Opinions of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are actively sought by the Company if they
are unable to attend the meeting in person.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(vii) The terms of reference of the Board also include:

a) to develop and review the policies and practices on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development

of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the policies and practices on compliance with legal

and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to

employees and directors; and

(e) to review the compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, list of Directors and the attendance records of

the Directors and members of the committees:

Total Number of Meetings

Number of meetings
attended/eligible to attend

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong
Mr. Lin En Fu

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Meng Chi
Ms. Chan Mei Sze
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has adopted a set of Code on Corporate Governance (“Company Code”)
which sets out the corporate standards and practices used by the Group to direct
and manage its business affairs. It is prepared by referencing to the principles, code
provisions and recommended best practices set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance (“GEM Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board will continue to monitor and revise the Company Code and assess the
effectiveness of our corporate governance practices in tandem with changes in the
environment and requirements under the GEM Code, to ensure the Company Code is
in line with the expectations and interests of shareholders and comply with the GEM
Code.

Except as mentioned below, the Company applied the principles and complied with
all the code provisions as set out in the GEM Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The GEM Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong is both the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
who is responsible for managing the Board and the Group business. The Board
considers that, with the present board structure and scope of business of the Group,
there is no imminent need to separate the roles into two individuals as Mr. Wong is
perfectly capable of distinguishing the priority of these roles in which he has been
acting. However, the Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group
corporate governance structure to assess whether the separation of the positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is necessary.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the GEM Code Provision A.4.1, all the Non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. At present, the Non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Code Provision A.6.7 and E.1.2

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that Independent Non-executive Directors and other
Non-executive Directors should attend general meeting and have a fair understanding
of the shareholders’ opinion. Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the
Board should attend the Annual General Meeting and also invite the Chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and any
other committee to the meeting.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors could not attend
the Annual General Meeting held on 26 September 2014 due to extraordinary
business activities and unexpected events.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The Company reports to all Directors regularly to allow the Directors to fully
understand the responsibility they share in the operation and the business of the
Group. The Group arranges professional development training for all Directors to
broaden and update their knowledge and skills, constantly informs all Directors about
the GEM Listing Rules and the latest development of other applicable regulations
to ensure the Directors comply with relevant regulation and raise their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. All Directors have provided their training
record.

The records of training the Directors received during the year ended 31 March 2015
are as follows:

Name of Directors EEHE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong FelREE
Mr. Lin En Fu MAEBRE
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen WMEZL L+
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru RInE+
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin MREHT
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Chu Meng Chi KRB E
Ms. Chan Mei Sze BRIEFF 2+
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny Mk E =

EERERRE (H)

=S )NE-37

AAREHAZRESFLER  BREAIBERESEEH
REEEEEEG L HQ%ZEEG$%@%%%%%§$K
BERHRE) - AARKEFEE 2B LR UHER
ﬂAmﬁiﬁ@ﬁ¥WiﬁﬁW&ﬁﬂﬁﬁW*ﬁWZrﬁ%
CAERESETERRE  YRERFHREGEERR
ﬁZ%&c%%%%EkA i SR AR ER ©

RHEZZ-AF=A=+t-HILFER JFEEMEIZE
AT

Attending Conferences, Forums and/or Seminars

HEES  wERAHEE
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

tRERHE (E

INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR STAFF

The Company has made appropriate arrangement regarding insurance, which covers
potential legal action faced by Directors and senior staff.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Lam is the company secretary of the Company. His authorized duties
include ensuring the Board of Directors to operate effectively and fulfill its duties,
drafting agenda for the Board of Directors’ meetings and shareholders’ meetings and
ensuring the clear and effective communication among members of the Board and
also between members of the Board and the shareholders and management. During
the year, the company secretary has undergone professional training for over 15
hours to gain the most updated knowledge to facilitate his discharge of duties.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Membership

1. The Committee shall consist of 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time.

2. The Board shall nominate one of the members as the Chairman of the
Committee.

3. The Company Secretary or his nominee shall act as the Committee’s
Secretary.

Frequency and proceedings of meetings

4. The Committee shall meet at least once every year.

5. The Chairman of the Committee may convene additional meetings at his
discretion.

6. The quorum of a meeting shall be 2 members of the Committee.

7. Proceedings of meetings of the Committee shall be governed by the provisions

of the Articles of Association of the Company.

Duties, powers and functions

8. The Committee shall:

(@ implement the remuneration policy laid down by the Board;

(o) recommend to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management;

(© review the remuneration of Directors and senior management;
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Duties, powers and functions (continued)

(d) review and approve the compensation arrangements in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal
or removal for misconduct to Directors;

(e) review the criteria for assessing employee performance, which should
reflect the Company’s business objectives and targets;

M) consider the annual performance bonus for Executive Directors,
senior management, and the general staff, having regard to their
achievements against the performance criteria and by reference to
market norms and make recommendation to the Board;

(¢)} do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its powers
and functions conferred on it by the Board; and

(h) conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may from
time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the constitution
of the Company or imposed by legislation.

9. The Committee shall be provided with sufficient resources to enable it to
perform its functions.

Reporting Procedures
10.  The Committee shall report to the Board on a regular basis.

The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Chu Meng Chi, an Independent
Non-executive Director, and other members include Ms. Lin Yan Jenny and Ms. Chan
Mei Sze being Independent Non-executive Directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee of the Company convened one
meeting, and all matters concerning the determination of remuneration of the
Directors and senior management were discussed. In addition, the remuneration
policies and incentive mechanism applicable to the Directors and senior management
and the overall remuneration system of the Group were further refined and reasonable
recommendations were made to the Board in the meeting.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Membership
1. The Committee shall consist of 5 Directors appointed by the Company’s Board

of Directors from time to time, at least 3 of them shall be Independent Non-
executive Directors.

2. The Board shall designate one of the members as the Committee’s Chairman.
3. The Company Secretary or his nominee shall act as the Committee’s
Secretary.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

CEEREE (R

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Frequency and proceedings of meetings

4. The Committee shall meet at least once annually.

5. In addition, the Committee’s Chairman may convene additional meetings at his
discretion.

6. The quorum of a meeting shall be 3 Committee members.

7. Proceedings of the Committee’s meetings shall be governed by the

Company’s Articles of Association.

Duties, powers and functions

8. The Committee shall:

(@) regularly review the structure, size and composition of the Board; and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
implement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(o) identify and nominate candidates to the Board;

(© assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors;

(d) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
succession planning for the Chairman, the Chief Executive as well as
the senior management;

(e do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its powers
and functions conferred on it by the Board; and

() conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may from
time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the Company’s
constitution or imposed by legislation.

9. The Committee shall be provided with sufficient resources to enable it to
perform its functions.

Reporting Procedures

10.  The Committee shall report to the Board on a regular basis.

The Nomination Committee of the Company currently comprises five Directors,
including two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Hoi Wong and Mr. Lin En Fu,
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu
Meng Chi and Ms. Chan Mei Sze, the Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Wong Hoi
Wong.

During the year, the committee convened one meeting, reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board; and made recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to implement the Company’s corporate strategy and
discharged its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial

statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are in accordance

with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also

ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, about their

reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 27 to 28 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

(@)

The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu Meng Chi and
Ms. Chan Mei Sze. The Audit Committee possesses a wealth of experience and
expertise including accounting profession, and regulatory experience both in
Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC. The Chairman of the committee is Mr. Chu
Meng Chi.

During the year, the Board reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee and has made relevant amendments to accommodate the
requirements of the GEM Code, where appropriate.

The primary function of the Audit Committee is to review and supervise the
Group’s financial reporting system, internal control procedures and to maintain
good and independent communications with the management as well as auditor
of the Company.

In discharging its responsibility, the Audit Committee has performed the
following work:

()  reviewed the draft annual and quarterly financial statements and draft
results announcements during the year; and

(i) reviewed, in conjunction with the auditor, the development of accounting
standards and assessed their potential impacts on the Group’s financial
statements.

The Audit Committee met four times during the year to review the results of the
Group.

Audit Committee is to be responsible for making recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and
any questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

CEEREE (R
AUDITOR

During the year ended 31 March 2015, audit service fees payable to auditors
amounted to HK$556,000 (2014: HK$564,000). No non-audit service fee was
payable to auditors during the year (2014: HK$205,000).

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal control periodically to
ensure it is effective and adequate. The Company convened meetings periodically to
discuss financial, operational and risk management control.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There is no significant change in the constitutional documents during the year.

PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

1. The Articles of Association set out the rights of our shareholders.

2. All shares have the same voting rights and are entitled to the dividends
declared.

3. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholder(s) holding not less than

one-tenth of the paid-up capital may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in
the related requisition deposited at the registered office.

4. For including a resolution relating to other matters in a general meeting,
shareholders are requested to follow the requirements and procedures as set
out in the Articles of Association.

5. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, if a shareholder wish to propose a
person other than a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should deposit a written notice of nomination which
shall be given to the Company Secretary within the 7-day period commencing
the day after the despatch of the notice of the meeting (or such other period as
may be determined and announced by the Directors from time to time).

6. Shareholders have the right to receive corporate communications in hard
copies.
7. Shareholders whose shares held in the Central Clearing and Settlement

System (CCASS) may notify us from time to time through Hong Kong
Securities Clearing Company Limited if they wish to receive our corporate
communications.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

1. This Policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of ensuring
Shareholders are provided with information about the Company, in order to
enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow Shareholders to engage actively with the Company.

2. The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders, and will
regularly review this Policy to ensure its effectiveness.

3. Information shall be communicated to Shareholders mainly through
the Company’s financial reports, annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as by making available
all the disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the website.

4, Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Registrar.

5. Corporate communication will be provided to Shareholders in plain language
and in both English and Chinese versions to facilitate Shareholders’
understanding. Information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange
is also posted on the Company’s website immediately thereafter. Such
information includes financial statements, results announcements, circulars
and notices of general meetings and associated explanatory documents etc.

6. Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint
proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are
unable to attend the meetings. Board members, appropriate management
executives and external auditor will attend annual general meetings to answer
Shareholders’ questions.

WORKPLACE

By offering competitive remuneration packages and fringe benefits to our employees,
staff turnover rate remains stable, while job performance and productivity are
maintained at satisfactory levels.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

We implement policies and practices that help conserve resources, improve energy
efficiency and raise environmental awareness among our staff. We pay close attention
to conserving the Earth’s natural resources. We strive to minimise our environmental
impact while ensuring high standards in our service quality. We focus on paper and
toner usage throughout all of our daily operation and we have always been devoted to
reduce energy consumption as we closely monitor energy consumption at our offices.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

CEEREE (R

GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT

In order to fully develop staff competence and potential, the Group has an employee
handbook in place for the employees to understand the policy of the Group. To equip
staff members with necessary skills and knowledge to meet future challenges and
professional requirements, the Group encourages the employees to attend a wide
range of training in the areas of regulatory requirements, compliance and Code of
Conduct.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company’s Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy. Under the Policy, the
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board with
a vision for the Company to achieve a sustainable and balanced development.
Appointments of directors are made on merits, including but not limited to, sex, age,
cultural and educational background, while having due regard for the benefits of
diversity of the Board. They represent diverse career experience in both international
and local enterprises. They bring with them diverse professional backgrounds,
spanning management, advisory and finance.

The Board composition reflects various cultural and educational backgrounds,
professional development, length of service, knowledge of the Company and a broad
range of individual attributes, interests and values. The Board considers the current
line-up has provided the Company with a good balance and diversity of skills and
experience for the requirements of its business. The Board will continue to review
its composition from time to time taking into consideration board diversity for the
requirements and benefits of the Company’s business.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

SEGMENT REPORTING

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the state of affairs of
the Company and of the Group at that date are set out on pages 29 to 93.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 35 and in note 30 to the
financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2015, the Company had no distributable reserves.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 15 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital during the year are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on pages 94 to 95.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEGWRE (E)

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong
Mr. Lin En Fu

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Hsieh Yi Chen
Ms. Wu Chiao Ru
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chu Meng Chi
Ms. Chan Mei Sze
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Wong
Hoi Wong, Mr. Lin Chien Hsin and Ms. Lin Yan Jenny shall retire from the board by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the transactions as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, no
other contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEEWE(E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SERTDITHRASENRLCEHF gD
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2015, the interests or short positions of the Directors and Chief RZE-—RAF=A=+—H0 EFEEFRITETHRABRELRAF]
Executives in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any S EEAREEE(EERBBEMNEST1 EEHFRAE KN
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and ([FHF BRG] EXVER) 2’ - ARG ERFEE
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), Chapter 571 under the Laws of Hong Kong), which were IR IETE A5 N RSB E XV ERE 7 R 8 D 22 A AN 7] & B
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part R 2wk a (REREES KB GHIA B &K EH
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they have taken or deemed EES R AR 2 ERSER) - SIREES L EEEHIE352
to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant 1EBE RN ZIE Tl 2 B e 2 B R - iR EAIZER
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which THRBIE S 61 IEBEMGARA R RS ERmT
were required, pursuant to Rule 5.61 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the (a) RIS EBRKLBRERMNDCER
Company
Type of interests and Percentage
number of shares held of the
ERERRAERAEA Company’s
Personal Other issued share
Name of director interest interest Total capital
LR SNG|
ERITRAE
EEHR B ARz Hit i Fob ERa)e
(Note)
(Hi:)
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin 5,295,000 - 5,295,000 2.35%
MREH S
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong - 1,608,600 1,608,600 0.67%
FelE k4
Note: These shares are registered in the name of Eaglemax International Investment Limited Htat - 3% 4t B% 19 T3 LAEaglemax International Investment Limited
(“ElIL”), a company owned by Intelligent Management Limited (“IML”) as the trustee of ([EIL)) 2 B#&FEREHA © 72 A/ Inteligent Management
Intelligent Management Discretionary Trust, a family discretionary trust, the objects of Limited ([IML]) BA K 1& % # 12 5t Inteligent Management
which include Mr. Wong Hoi Wong, his family and any charity in the world. As at 31 Discretionary Trust 2 S5EAS MR  ZBEAEZEAR
March 2015, Mr. Wong Hoi Wong held the entire issued share capital of IML. By virtue EITEEERERBURZHRIMEZEE - N _F—H
of SFO, Mr. Wong Hoi Wong has an interest of such shares. FZA=+—H " THNELEFBIMLEIBEHITRA - 4K

BEFRAEEN - EIREEREZSRO 2 -
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEGWRE (E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors had short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rule 5.61 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2015, the following persons (not being the Directors and Chief
Executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO as follows:

ESREZTHASNRRAE S gD (1)

(b) RABIRIDKIBRIRRIND 2R

BRABEREEIN R-T-HAF=A=+—H JSEEHUE
MAR B Z B An sBADTAE T A Z iR A EAER -

BAREREEN RZZ-—AF=-A=1+—"R SEEHE
RARBREEABELEE (ERLEFRBEEAFEXV #8)
Z Rt~ RO HESRH A EAREES LB ERIIEXV
METR8DHEHNEARA LB Rz EmRER (BIER
IEES AR RO ARBIEORFREFRRAEE 2 e
B FRIEEZ R B GDI B350 B E RN Z G Tl 2 &
Atz #mRER - FRIEAIFRR EMARRAIES.61 (FAM
EARNF R SRR -

FRIRR @D

REZZ—RAF=A=+—8 #HEEFRIAEKHEXVEE?2
RBDEMEXIB T kA KB EIRGIE 6 IERERFEZE
oMATRe s 2 AR BIR - R KES Z EEAEZ A
T(FARAEEREFETHRAB)NAT ¢

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of shareholder Nature of interests shares held issued share capital
BE HEBITREZ

RREM EEME ROHE BMABED
Ms. Wang Ying Fang Beneficial Bz 40,000,000 17.73%

Wang Ying Fang Z =

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, there was no person (not being
the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company) who had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of purchase attributable to the five largest suppliers in
aggregate is less than 30%.

The sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 83%
of the total sales for the year and the sales to the largest customer included therein
accounted for approximately 40%.

None of the Directors, their respective associates and shareholders of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company) had any interest in any of the five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group for the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules during the year are set
out in note 34 to the financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the substantial shareholders or the management shareholders
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests in any business which
competed with or might compete with the business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31
March 2015.

CORPORATE STRATEGY

The Group’s strategy is to generate stable income through property investment.
Our corporate values rest in growing the presence of our existing businesses and
identifying new business and investment opportunities not limited to our current
businesses in order to deliver value to both our customers and our shareholders.
All such opportunities will continue to be diligently and carefully evaluated by the
Board with the view of delivering value to our shareholders. We believe implementing
disciplined business strategies and prudent financial management serves this
purpose by preserving the longevity and sustainability of our businesses.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
% Eﬂ:(nﬁ)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and to provide supervision over the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group. The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Lin Yan Jenny, Mr. Chu Meng Chi and Ms. Chan
Mei Sze.

During the year, the Audit Committee has met four times to review the results of the
Group.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by BDO Limited.

BDO Limited retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of the Company to re-
appoint Messrs. BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

By Order of the Board

Wong Hoi Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EEE -+ +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THIZ TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Thiz Technology Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
29 to 93, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2015, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

BB R

25% Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B BED R ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgements, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2015 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chi Wai
Practising Certificate Number: P04945
Hong Kong, 26 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HRRmkEtEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZ=ZT—HF=A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-HF T —mF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P EE FHET FHET
Turnover X 5 1,780 1,350
Cost of sales and services S I RIS AR (72) (186)
Gross profit EAH 1,708 1,164
Other revenue and gains N 5 7,404 1,298
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER - M
General and administrative expenses —RITEHER (7,155) (8,050)
Finance costs AE A 7 (772) (1,247)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB ATEF(E518) 8 1,185 (6,836)
Taxation BiIA 11(a) (540) (537)
Profit/(loss) for the year REEER(FR) 645 (7,373)
Other comprehensive income Hin 2 E =
Item that may be subsequently re-classified HignsmoEs
to profit or loss: BmMIER -
Currency translation differences BismE = 15 4
Total comprehensive income for the year REE2HEINGZLHAEE 660 (7,369)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: LT EEAEEF (B518) -
— Owners of the Company —ARFHEEA 655 (7,360)
— Non-controlling interest — IR S (10) (13)
645 (7,373)
Total comprehensive income for the year UTEEARFEZEKNGZEE
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company EAVNEIL 2PN 670 (7,356)
- Non-controlling interest —IEiE i (10) (13)
660 (7,369)
Earnings/(loss) per share: BRERN,(FE) : (Restated)
- Basic and diluted (in cents) —EARREE (L) 14 0.3 (3.8)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wrE MR RR

At 31 March 2015 W-Z—HF=HA=+—H

2015 2014
—E-AHF —T—mEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iz FHT FHT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE R&E 15 12 20
Investment properties WA 16 43,750 43,125
Deferred development costs IRIEFBERL A 18 - -
43,762 43,145
Current assets REVEE
Trade and other receivables, FEUR I B Ath FEUL R IR
deposits and prepayments Z& RIEMFKIE 19 443 443
Bank balances and cash RITEFENIRE 20 20,598 15,427
21,041 15,870
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FE(TERTR 21 63 63
Receipts in advance TEW AR 511 550
Other payables, deposits received and HAERFIE - BEliRE Rk
accruals fEH IR 22 1,840 1,786
Amount due to the spouse of a director F1ﬁ§$@ﬁf FRIE 23 1,268 1,573
3,682 3,972
Net current assets REBEEFRE 17,359 11,898
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEMS 61,121 55,043
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Amount due to a director JENEEFIE 24 5,907 6,777
Amount due to a shareholder RS R k08 25 24,291 21,870
Loan BR 26 - 7,223
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIAAE 11(b) 1,077 537
31,275 36,407
Net assets EEFE 29,846 18,636
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

mEMBRR R (E)

At 31 March 2015 R-Z—HF=H=+—H

2015 2014
—E-RF —Z—mEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FHT FHT
EQUITY =

Share capital B 27 225,570 208,274
Reserves 5 (195,418) (189,342)

Equity attributable to owners of EATREEA
the Company FE(LRER 30,152 18,932
Non-controlling interest FEER S (306) (296)
Total equity ERAHE 29,846 18,636

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 26 June 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director
WONG HOI WONG

Director

LIN EN FU

IEFEAMBRER _Z-—AF AT RALESSHAR
BT - WA TIIEFRERESR

e M
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Statement of Financial Position

BATSIR L 3=

At 31 March 2015 W-Z—HF=HA=+—H

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iz FExT FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE R&E 15 - -
Interests in subsidiaries FTEMIB AR 2 e 17 46,126 46,126
46,126 46,126
Current assets REEE
Bank balances and cash RITHEERRE 20 43 7,451
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables H b FERTFIE 22 827 808
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(BE) BEFE (784) 6,643
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 45,342 52,769
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHH B A B F0E 17 2,211 19,508
Net assets EERE 43,131 33,261
EQUITY R
Share capital &N 27 225,570 208,274
Reserves & 30(d) (182,439) (175,013)
Total equity EHAE 43,131 33,261
These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by NWEEERMBHEERN - E—RENA- T NAKRESSHER
the Board of Directors on 26 June 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: BHETZS WA TIESREREE
Director Director o EEa
WONG HOI WONG LIN EN FU Eae WEH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—Z

AF=A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-RF —Z—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Cash flows from operating activities REEKCHERE
Profit/(loss) before taxation ME AR R (E51E) 1,185 (6,836)
Adjustments for: FE
Fair value gain on investment properties "EYZE AT ERE (625) (1,250)
Gain on capitalisation of loans (Note 27(0)) EFE AR cas (R 27(0) (6,746) -
Interest income FEWA (22) (18)
Interest expenses FBERAXZ 772 1,247
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEWARIE 2 R (B 518 - 27
Provision for obsolete and B ROR I ERE
slow moving inventories - 108
Depreciation e 8 22
Operating cash flows before working EEESBH A LCERESRE
capital changes (5,428) (6,700)
Decrease in trade and other receivables, U % HL fth R W SR IE -
deposits and prepayments e RIERFIER - 38
Increase in trade payables FETERIEIE N - 27
(Decrease)/increase in receipts in advance TEuERIE CRid), /o0 (39) 341
Increase/(decrease) in other payables, deposits HAibFEFIE - EWIRSE
received and accruals N ERT R, CRd) 54 (377)
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes INSTE R B8 2 & 11 8
Cash used in operations KEEKFARS (5,402) (6,663)
Interest received =& 22 18
Interest paid EFE (314) (339)
Net cash used in operating activities REERFTARS A (5,694) (6,984)
Cash flows from investing activities REZBEHERE
Payments to acquire property, REME
plant and equipment BV AN BN - 7
Cash acquired through acquisition WKENBARMSRS
of subsidiaries (Note 31(a)) (Hi3E31(a)) - 4,794
Net cash generated from investing activities REFEBELZBEESTHE - 4,777
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued]

GERERER (E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZEZEZT—hHF=-A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-AF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAT
Cash flows from financing activities MEIBZHERE
Repayment of amount due to HEBENESLBIE
the spouse of a director (255) (273)
Repayment of amount due to a director BEENESHA (880) (960)
Increase in amount due to a shareholder JES AR B FRIBLE N 12,000 9,000
Net cash generated from financing activites & FHELE RS FE 10,865 7,767
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEEEEEMFR 5,171 5,560
Cash and cash equivalents at RENzRERBELEEER
beginning of year 15,427 9,867
Cash and cash equivalents REEZRERBESESHEER
at end of year (Note 20) (HzE20) 20,598 15,427

Details of the major non-cash transactions during the year are set out in Note 31(b) to

the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AFE=ZA=1t—HLFE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B TSR R M

31March2015 —Z—hAF=A=+—H

GENERAL

Thiz Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law (Cap.22 Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands on 6 December 2000. The address of its registered office
and principal place of business are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Unit 810, 8/F, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37 Ma Tau Wai Road, To Kwa Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, respectively.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM”) on 27 July 2001.

The Group engages in (i) property leasing; (i) trading business; and (i) an
information technology industry, in which, it is a developer and provider of a
range of Linux solutions including Linux operating systems, application systems
run on Linux. The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the
financial statements.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1 April 2014
The Group has adopted the following new/revised HKFRSs issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are effective for
the current accounting period.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures

for Non-financial Assets

The adoption of these revised/new HKFRSs has no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet

effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s
operations, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Group:

Effective date

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative (i)

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate (i)
Financial Statements

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (iii)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts (ii)

with Customers

Effective date:

(i)  Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
(i)  Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
(i) Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 are designed to further encourage companies
to apply professional judgement in determining what information to
disclose in their financial statements. For example, the amendments make
clear that materiality applies to the whole financial statements and that the
inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit the usefulness of financial
disclosures. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that companies should
use professional judgement in determining where and in what order
information is presented in the financial disclosures.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet

effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27 - Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity method in accounting
for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and that have contractual
terms that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash
flow characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) if
the objective of the entity’s business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure equity instruments that
are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for all financial
assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS
39 and new general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition framework. The
core principle of the framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation
Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance obligation is

satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue related topics
that may change the current approach taken under HKFRSs. The standard
also significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative disclosures
related to revenue.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the potential
impact of these new/revised HKFRSs and the directors so far concluded
that the application of these new/revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])
B 5 iR R M= (48

31 March 2015

“Z-hF¥=A=+—8

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(c)

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance provisions relating to
the preparation of financial statements

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) requiring financial statements disclosures with reference to the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622 (the “New Companies
Ordinance”) will first apply to the Company in its financial year ending on 31
March 2016.

The directors consider that there will be no impact on the Group’s financial
position or performance, however the New Companies Ordinance would
have impacts on the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The statement of financial position of the Company
will be presented in the notes rather than a separate statement and certain
related notes need not be included.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Thiz Technology Group Limited

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretation (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, these financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the GEM Listing Rules.

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified for investment properties, which are
carried at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented
in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is the functional currency of
the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the
effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interest
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they
arise from new information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about the fair value
at the acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AT IRA M=t (8

31March2015 —Z—hAF=A=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Thiz Technology Group Limited

Business combination and basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between () the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interest
is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise
control. The Company controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Historical cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its present working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the asset has been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is
charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it is probable that future economic benefits of the expenditure will
flow to the entity, and the cost of which can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the asset or a separate
asset.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The useful lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

33%
14%-33%
14%-20%
20%

Computer equipment
Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on
initial recognition and subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

PA T S R P L (4B

31March2015 —Z—hAF=A=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date where
the purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction
costs, except for those financial assets classified as at FVTPL, which are
initially measured at fair value. During the year, the Group’s financial assets
are classified as loans and receivables which are subsequently accounted
for as follows:

i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses. Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the asset have been impacted. Objective evidence of
impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

—  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Financial assets (Continued)

i)

i)

iv)

Impairment of financial assets

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate, where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade and other receivables and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises financial assets only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

AT R R M RE

31 March 2015

(nﬁ)

—T-hF=A=1+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Financial liabilities and equity instrument issued by the Group

)

i)

i)

iv)

Thiz Technology Group Limited

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including trade payables, other payables, deposit
received and accruals and borrowings are initially measured at fair
value, net of transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life
of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a creditor to
settle a financial liability in whole or in part as a result of renegotiating
the terms of that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability or part thereof is
extinguished. If the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are measured to reflect
the fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss
for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held at
call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Operating leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
concerned to the lessees. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on the
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also
spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AT IRA M=t (8

31 March 2015

—E-HF=A=1-H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

(9]

Thiz Technology Group Limited

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the profit or loss as incurred.

Development expenses are also written off as incurred except for those
incurred for specific projects which are deferred where recoverability can
be foreseen with reasonable assurance and comply with the following
criteria: (i) the product or process is clearly defined and the costs are
separately identified and measured reliably; (i) the technical feasibility of
the product or process is demonstrated; (jii) the product or process will
be sold or used in-house; (iv) a potential market exists for the product or
process or its usefulness in the case of internal use is demonstrated; and (v)
adequate technical, financial and other resources required for completion
of the product or process are available.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the expected economic useful lives of the products,
subject to a maximum period of five years commencing in the year when
the products are put into commercial production.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount
is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

Taxation

Taxation for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities adjusted
for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes
and is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities arising from initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profits are not
recognised.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the appropriate
tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when an investment
property is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”.
Unless the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these
investment properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their carrying amounts at the
reporting date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

AT R R M RE

31 March 2015

(nﬁ)

“T-RF=A=t-H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Foreign currencies

(n)

Thiz Technology Group Limited

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, foreign
currency transactions are translated into individual entity’s functional
currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are included in profit or loss.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations (including comparatives)
are expressed in Hong Kong dollars using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of reporting period. Income and expenses items (including
comparatives) are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the year, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in translation reserve. Such translation differences, to the
extent attributable to the owners of the Company, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period when the foreign operations are disposed of.

Employees’ benefits

i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than
termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in which
the employees render the related service. Short term employee
benefits are recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

i) Defined contribution retirement plans
The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement
scheme are expensed as incurred when the services are rendered by
the employees.

i) - Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when

the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Borrowing costs

(p)

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition, construction or

production of qualifying assets which require a substantial period of time

to be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the

cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific

borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from

borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

@)

(o)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the

Group if that person:

)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
apply:

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

(q) Share-based payment transactions

Where share options are awarded to employees and others providing
similar services, the fair value of the options at the date of grant is
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the employee share option reserve within equity. Non-market
vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of
equity instruments expected to vest at the end of each reporting period so
that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period
is based on the number of options that eventually vest. Market vesting
conditions are factored into the fair value of the options granted. As long
as all other vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective
of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified before they vest,
the increase in the fair value of the options, measured immediately before
and after the modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than employees
and others providing similar services, the fair value of goods or services
received is recognised in profit or loss unless the goods or services qualify
for recognition as assets. A corresponding increase in equity is recognised.
For cash-settled share based payments, a liability is recognised at the fair
value of the goods or services received.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, BEGFEER(E8)
(r) Revenue recognition (n WAER
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or WA ZRB W ERRE S AFERE - WAE Y
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates HEPRE  WHREMBUEKELRINE - BT
and other similar allowances and excludes value added tax or other sales BIEEER R H M HEEERE -

related taxes.

) Revenue from sales of goods is recognised upon transfer of the ) HEERIWARERZAEEZ BB R
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the customer. This BRkEREEETECREER - LFERABER
is usually taken as the time when the goods are delivered and the ERBENEREPEEWERRFEAE -

customer has accepted the goods.

i) Software development income from provision of technical support i) REREREMTSIERETESNEREREBAR
services are recognised when the services are rendered. PRISIRAL1£ FERR o

i)  Rental income is recognised in accordance with the Group’s i)y FASUATIRIRM F 400 TE AR E R L E R
accounting policy for operating leases set out in Note 4(h). TAESTHERER -

iv)  Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the V) T B A DA BRI SR A B R B 1 R R o

effective interest method.

5. TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS 5. E3% - HWA RS
Turnover represents the Group’s gross rental income, the invoiced value of EEBIEAEEAHESIWA - ESHUWA N Linux EHF
trading income and software development income of Linux based software, after WAZEZERE UHBRERE TNRBEEERE
allowances for returns and discounts and net of value added tax. An analysis of S8 AEBEEEBRAMBARKGE Z AT -
the Group’s turnover, other revenue and gains is as follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Turnover: R
Rental income U A 1,312 780
Software development income BFRZERA 468 235
Trading income B WA - 335
1,780 1,350
Other revenue and gains: EA A Wz
Fair value gain on investment properties (Note 16) BREAMENFEYE (HiE16) 625 1,250
Interest income FEMA 22 18
Exchange gain [ 5 e - 4
Sundry income HIEIA 11 26
Gain on capitalisation of loans (Note 27(b)) ERE M edas (5 27(0)) 6,746 -
7,404 1,298
Turnover, other revenue and gains BEE - Hl A Rk 9,184 2,648
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SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports reviewed
by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to make strategic decisions
and to assess the performance.

The Group has three (2014: three) reportable segments. Each of the Group’s
reportable segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of other reportable segments. Details of the reportable segments are
summarised as follows:

(@ the trading business segment that engages in the trading of computer
accessories and household goods;

(b) the software development segment that engages in the development
and provision of technical support services to Linux based software and
hardware products; and

(c) the property leasing segment that engages in property leasing in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude amount due to the spouse of a director, amount
due to a director, amount due to a shareholder, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.

There was no inter-segment sale or transfer during the year (2014: HK$Nil).
Central revenue and expenses including other revenue and gains (except for
fair value gain on investment properties) and finance costs are not allocated
to the operating segments as they are not included in the measurement of the
segments’ profit/(loss) that is used by the chief operating decision-makers for
assessment of segments’ performance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
BATS SR R =F (48)

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=A=+—H

NEBRE

REER T 2 EIEREE T2 UL AE LR R AT
KA MEHEELENHL -

AEERE=E(=F— C=E) A 2R E
mEA2 i&“*ﬁ?a}mtﬁéuu&ﬁ&’ﬁz B ENL -
B A 2HDE 2 BB R ERAR o 7] 2D 5 F
BT

°

l%i i

S

Tk

(@ BEZEBOE  KFBHEMN RERRER

(b) EHFEDED - 1EF Linux B RAE M E @2 MR
REEMSE - R

© YEEEDH RERPEARKME(HE]Z
MEEE -

DHEETBERE MR SEMEAR REMKRD AT
RFEE RERZEEEMRETEERE -

DHEBETBEERNERRMBNIE  BNESHE &
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the Financial Statements (Continued)
B 5 R R Bt aE (48)

31 March2015 —E—AF=A=+—H

Notes to

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) TZHRNE

(a) Reportable segments

Trading business  Software development  Property leasing Consolidated
BREK L MERE &
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-5fF “T-NF “E-5F —TNF “E-1F —T-NF “E-15F —T-F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TART FHET FHAT FHEL TART TET TER FHEL
Revenue from exteral customers  RESNAEE 2 A - 335 468 235 1,312 780 1,780 1,350
Inter-segment revenue PERBA - - - - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue AE2RDBRA - 335 468 235 1,312 780 1,780 1,350
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A 2®A B (BR),/ 57 (908) (850) 244 @ 1,500 1,885 836 1,028
Reportable segment assets AERNHEE 245 250 18 18 43,751 43,126 44,014 43,394
Reportable segment liabilities AZHHTEE (167) (149) ®) @) (684) (716) (854) (868)
Other segment information: Hih s
Interest income FIEWA 22 18
Fair value gain on investment RENEZNTE
properties e - - - - 625 1,250 625 1,250
Finance costs BEKA (772)  (1,247)
Depreciation e 4 6 1 1 1 1 6 8
Unallocated depreciation APEHE 2 14
Total depreciation wEsE 8 22
Additions to non-current assets  AINEIERBBE - 10 - 3 - 41876 - 41889
Unallocated additions to ADEINEERBDERE
non-current assets - 4
Total additions to ANEFRDEERR
non-current assets - 41,893
BIRSRIREEAR AR 2014/15FH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])
B 5 R R Mt EE (48)

31 March 2015

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

“Z-hF¥=A=+—8

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit, assets and

liabilities

NEPRE (18)

(b) TIZ2MANEBIEN - BENSBE 2 HR

2015 2014
—E-RF —Z—E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FiT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREBLATRA(B58)
Reportable segment profit A 285 &P A 836 1,028
Other revenue EugA 6,779 48
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ERHEMARS IR (5,658) (6,665)
Finance costs BhE KA (772) (1,247)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before taxation BB AR =T (EE) 1,185 (6,836)
2015 2014
—Z2-afF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AIE2HOHBEE 44,014 43,394
Cash and cash equivalents BehReEEEE 20,598 15,427
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEEEE 191 194
Consolidated total assets MEBERE 64,803 59,015
2015 2014
—2-1% —TmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities AR HEE (854) (868)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEAE (1,077) (537)
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEEER
— Amount due to the spouse of a director —ERESRBERIEA (1,268) (1,573)
— Amount due to a director —EREEFHIE (5,907) 6,777)
— Amount due to a shareholder — FERT AR IR SR8 (24,291) (21,870)
— Loan —B® - (7,223)
— Others —EAh (1,560) (1,531)
(33,026) (38,974)
Consolidated total liabilities A BERTE (34,957) (40,379)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Geographic information

During the reporting period, the Group’s operations and non-current
assets other than financial instruments (specified non-current assets) are
located in Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC (2014: Hong Kong, Taiwan
and the PRC). The specified non-current assets information below is based
on the location of assets.

Segment information of the Group by geographical locations of customer
is presented as below:

Rt 75 S R R AL (4R

31 March2015 —Z—AF=HA=+—H

NS (18)

(c) M DEBERY

REENE - AREZ EERIFADEE (SRTA
(BEIRBERE) BN LRES - ASRFE (=
TomE A AERGE) A THEIRDE
EAHTYAAEREES

REPREMEI D AREZ D RPERT -

Hong Kong Taiwan PRC Consolidated
EH aE HE ga
2015 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE2-1f TN ZB-RF —T-0F -B-RF “T-0F ZB-1F “EF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Fan TEx  TEr TR TAr  TEx  TAn
Revenue from external customers RENREEZBA - 308 335 1,472 1,015 1,780 1,350
Specified non-current assets BEFREEE 2

Information about major customers

The Group’s customer base is concentrated and there were two
customers (2014: four) with whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group’s revenue. During the year ended 31 March 2015, rental
income from one tenant in the property leasing segment amounted to
approximately HK$711,000, and income from one customer in software
development segment amounted to approximately HK$309,000. During
the year ended 31 March 2014, rental income from each of the two tenants
in the property leasing segment amounted to approximately HK$321,000
and HK$154,000, respectively while sales from one customer in trading
business segment amounted to approximately HK$309,000, and income
from one customer in software development segment amounted to
approximately HK$235,000.

4 6 43,756 43,135 43,762 43,145

(d) FBEFZER

REEZEPEMER  HAME(ZT—NF : Y
%)E)EZQ%%EHZ"EL&AZm%ML cREE
ZE-AF=A=+—HLFE RPEHAESD
B—R2AEME 2 HS WAL 711,000/ 7T - REF
I EE — &% P FIE 2 YA K /309,000# 7T ©
REE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILEFE  "WxEHR
EHHMEmMBATME 2B WA BIZ321,000%
LK 154,000 7T - RESEBKHHE —BEFHE
Z WA K /809,000 7T + REHFREDEHE —BE
P FTiS 2 WA K9 /% 235,000 7T, ©

BIRRHASE AR AR 2014/15F
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])
B 5 R R b= (48)

31March2015 —Z—hAF=HA=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERR
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FT
Interest payable to a director (Note 24) R EEF L (FiE24) 230 278
Interest payable to the spouse of a director (Note 23) & ERMEF S (Fi5E 23) 48 61
Interest payable to a shareholder (Note 25) FEAFAR B F2. (P =E 25) 420 576
Other loan interest HiBEHFE 74 332
772 1,247
8. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 8. FRFADEM,(E8)
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FT
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging:  BxFi AT A, (E518) & F0BR T 5 &8 -
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA - 125
Cost of services rendered EAR AR TSR A 72 61
Depreciation e 8 22
Minimum operating lease payments: LERE 2 RERERE -
office premises BN Y/ES 773 805
Auditor’s remuneration [ Gl e 556 564
Staff costs BIMA
(including directors’ emoluments): (BREEEM2) :
Salaries and other benefits e REAET 3,723 3,721
Pension scheme contributions RIRSEHEIER 243 320
3,966 4,041
Provision for obsolete and slow moving inventories B BT E RS
(included in cost of inventories sold/cost of sales) BIAEETFERAEHHERA) - 108
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AT SRR M= ()

31 March2015 —Z—AF=HA=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 9. EENSHRITHASZEE
EMOLUMENTS
(@) Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursued to the GEM Listing Rules and (@ RIBRIZFERETRAREERABGIFEI61F EF
Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: e HENT -
Salaries,
allowances Pension
Directors’ and other scheme
fees benefits  contributions Total
e 2ER Eike
EBEWS HitEF sTEIHR BEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
2015 —ZE-1F
Executive Directors: WITESE -
Wong Hoi Wong Tz - 1,030 17 1,047
Lin En Fu A - 486 - 486
Non-executive Directors: FEHITES
Lin Chien Hsin MR 48 - - 48
Hsieh Yi Chen EINEES 48 - - 48
Wu Chiao Ru RRT5 1A 48 - - 48
Independent Non-executive Directors: N FEHITES -
Chan Mei Sze BREFF 48 - - 48
Chu Meng Chi @M 48 - - 48
Lin Yan Jenny ak 48 - - 48
288 1,516 17 1,821
2014 - S TS
Executive Directors: WITESE -
Wong Hoi Wong TR - 1,030 15 1,045
Lin En Fu M - 486 - 486
Non-executive Directors: FEHITES -
Lin Chien Hsin M 48 - - 48
Hsieh Yi Chen SHEZE 48 - - 48
Wu Chiao Ru RRT54A 48 - - 48
Independent Non-executive Directors: B FIEITES -
Chan Mei Sze BRI 48 - - 48
Chu Meng Chi KAaE 48 - - 48
Lin Yan Jenny Rak 48 - - 48
288 1,516 15 1,819

RAFERBEFE  BEEMNEERELRENR
FEME 2 5 AR B B ek k&
B2 WE N TEEES -

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments, and neither incentive payment nor compensation
for loss of office was paid to any director during the current and prior year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])
B 5 R R b= (48)

31March2015 —Z—hAF=HA=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 9. EENSRITHRAEZHE (8)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Details of emoluments paid to the five highest paid individuals during the ) RFAMEEZSIFALTEERNEES(ZE—N
year included two directors (2014: two directors) whose emoluments are F:MBES) INMe BRI E - REA -
set out above. Details of remuneration of the remaining three (2014: three) AREBZHT=%(Z2—NE: =) RaHES
highest paid employees of the Group during the year are as follows: ZHe 2 EERNET

2015 2014
—E-AF —ZT—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e M REMET 940 930
Pension scheme contributions BRIKSETEME K 41 38
981 968

The aggregate emoluments of each of the highest paid employees were AEERBAFESRRFEE ZHESLEHER

less than HK$1,000,000 for the current and prior years. 1,000,000/8 T °

The aggregate emoluments of each of the members of senior management SRERESKE M EREE T FHMEER :

were within the following bands:

2015 2014

—E-AfF —ZT—mEF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A N

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 87T 7 7
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 A 7LZ 1,500,000 47T 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

10. PENSION SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees who are eligible to participate in the
scheme. The MPF Scheme has operated since 1 December 2000. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The central
pension scheme is responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
all retired employees and the Group has no further obligations for the pension
payments on post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.

The Group’s contributions to pension schemes for the year ended 31 March
2015 amounted to HK$243,000 (2014: HK$320,000).

R 5 S R AL (4R

31 March2015 —Z—AF=HA=+—H

10. EINE5TEl

AEBRBRGERBEFEGD - REABEEERS
et 2 BB RY \E%’Eﬁ%ﬂli AER IR KR RIS (738
ReFtEl)) - aEeFE A= ??ii-&——ﬁ]—ﬁti
e AEEZREBEAFHFE R -—BOLIELHE - RA
REBBESF ERAME L R E B AR - RS
FEZEETNBELERAS  BEAKEZEEDFEF
B AEEpRESF IR Z BREHFZBREEM
Ao

RABRGEZARFMBARZ BEASHAEMMIK
Bz R REAREFE - ZETEMBARIALRNE
R—BotAPRERKREFEERHI - hREKREE
AN ERDRRERZMARKE  MAKEBA
ERHFAINZ BRNEBFAEEMRASEE

REE-ZT-—AF=-A= + EIJrE
R& TR R043,000%E T (=

CARKEERR
—PU4F : 320,000 7T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

PA T S R P L (4B

31 March2015 —Z—HF=A=+—H

11. TAXATION 11. TRI8
(@) Taxation for the year (a) AFEFIE
2015 2014
—E-fHF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Deferred tax for the year REFIRERIE 540 537

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax, PRC enterprise income tax and
Taiwan enterprise income tax has been made as the Group has sustained
estimated tax losses for both years. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere,
if any, have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations
and practices in respect thereof.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to profit/(loss) before taxation per
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as follows:

AR BN M EFE R FE T RERR - S
BELBEMNGEH  PRECEMEHREEDREMR
SRR - Bttt )y 2 ERBOEFHIR (HF) THiR
BAKBRERBZ AAERER ZRITHELIRER
BEY - BEREFE -

AEERERRGABRE M AMEEARERAEZ
BRIEATRT, (B 2 BRI -

Thiz Technology Group Limited

2015 2014
o —Z—E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEBATEF,(EE) 1,185 (6,836)
Taxation calculated at Hong Kong profits #£16.5% (ZZ—M4F : 16.5%)
tax rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) ZEBNSBBEAE 2 BH 196 (1.128)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR AT 2 s & 1,008 1,210
Effect on different tax rate of subsidiaries REMENEREELE 2B AT
operating in the other jurisdictions TRBER 2 184 183
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses KRB EEB R E 266 253
Tax effect of unrecognised deductible RERAIMBE R EEZRE BB E
temporary differences - 21
Tax effect of non-taxable items TAERITEE 2 B2 (1,114) @
Taxation for the year RFEERIA 540 537
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11. TAXATION (Continued)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

FA T S R A AL (4R

31 March2015 —Z—HF=HA=+—H

1 1 WRI,E\ (mg)

The components of recognised deferred tax liabilities are as follows: (o) RIEEIA B B2 XA T
Accelerated Revaluation of
depreciation investment
allowance properties Total
InEB B
e REMEEM et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHT
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=FMHA—H - - -
Charge for the year AEENHR 224 313 537
At 31 March 2014 R-Z—ME=A=+—8 224 313 537
Charge for the year REE Nk 384 156 540
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—hAF=A=+—H 608 469 1,077
The components of unrecognised deductible temporary differences are as (€ FERAMMEREEZR Z2BKIBHOT
follows:
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FAT
Unutilised tax losses KRB ARIBEE
PRC subsidiaries R ERIF B A B 8,101 10,254
Taiwan subsidiary 11,709 11,668
Companies operating in Hong Kong REBLE 2 RF 22,358 22,358
42,168 44,280
Provision B 1,128 2,028
Decelerated tax allowances BIRTIEITE 3 3
43,299 46,311
Note: T

Deferred tax assets in respect of the deductible temporary differences have
not been recognised in these financial statements owing to the absence
of objective evidence in respect of the availability of sufficient taxable
profits that are expected to arise to offset against the deductible temporary
differences.

The unutilised tax losses accumulated in the PRC subsidiaries and the
Taiwan subsidiary would expire in five years and ten years from the
respective year of loss sustained respectively. The unutilised tax losses
accumulated in those group entities operating in Hong Kong can be carried
forward indefinitely.

HRBRZ ZEURR AR ERMEL 2 ERBE T -
VAESH AT N 2 B IR 2 - it P R B IS SRk
AR AR E S E RIERRTHIAEE °

hERAENEARRE L RBBRAEE/RS 5
REBZBRFEERFARTFALM - RES
&2z NEZ RSB IARE A ER A -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
BATS SRR M ok (48)

31 March2015 —Z—HF=A=+—H

12.

13.

14.

Thiz Technology Group Limited

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

Of the Group’s profit/(loss) attributable to the owners of the Company, a profit
of HK$3,680,000 (2014: a loss of HK$3,844,000) has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

DIVIDEND

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the year (2014:
HK$Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2015
is based on the profit attributable to owners of the Company of HK$655,000
(2014: loss attributable to owners of the Company of HK$7,360,000) and
weighted average of 220,499,770 (2014: 192,602,492 (restated)) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares of basic earnings/(loss)
per share for both years have been adjusted for the share consolidation (Note
27(c)) during the year. The Company has no share options outstanding during
the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015. Accordingly, the basic and diluted
earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 are the
same.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

12.

13.

14.

RABEB AESER,(§518)

FEARRBHE AREGEAEBERF,(FE)+ 3,680,000
BT (ZZ— DU : 518 3,844,000 8 7T ) i FI A A D &) 8F
TEMAR NBRIE

R2

ARRRAFERGREREREABRE (ZF— 04 :
TET) °

SRERM (6B8)

REEZZ-—AF=A=1+—HLFE SRELEF
THEAR R B A A AR 655,000 8 7T ( =& — U4 -
NN EEA AREIGE5187,360,00078 70 ) R F N B 31T INHE
9 EBAR 220,499,770 (= Z — 04 : 192,602,492 f%
(BF)))a1E -

REEFE - SRERRFN,(FR) L BRINETH
HOEMBOEG (27 MAFEELRE - REE—
Z-RF=A=+-AR-Z-NF=A=+—RHILHF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. M3 ~ M RER

FA T S R A AL (4R

31 March2015 —Z—AF=HA=+—H

Furniture
Computer Office and Motor
equipment equipment fixtures vehicles Total
ERRE WAERE BHMREE "E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FAT FAT FHT FHT
The Group AEER
Cost: B
At 1 April 2013 R=ZE—=FMA—H 583 1,177 394 217 2,371
Additions NE 4 13 - - 17
Additions through BRUENBRRRNE

acquisition of subsidiaries (Bf5E31(a)

(Note 31(a)) - - 1 - 1
At 31 March 2014 RZT-ME=A=+—H 587 1,190 395 217 2,389
Written off i ) _ _ _ @
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE-HE=A=1+—H 583 1,190 395 217 2,385
Accumulated depreciation: Z25TiE -

At 1 April 2013 R=ZE—=FMA—H 576 1,170 384 217 2,347
Charge for the year REELH 5 6 11 - 22
At 31 March 2014 RZT-ME=A=+—H 581 1,176 395 217 2,369
Charge for the year AFEELH 3 5 - - 8
Written off Ji ) _ _ _ @
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE-HEF=HA=1+—-H 580 1,181 395 217 2,373
Carrying amount: BRE(E

At 31 March 2015 W-Z-H§=A=+-H 3 9 - - 12
At 31 March 2014 RZT-ME=A=+—H 6 14 - - 20

BRI RB AR AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
BATS SRR M ok (48)

31 March2015 —Z—HF=A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. W% ~ MENXE (&)

Computer Office
equipment equipment Total
BIERE WAERE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FET
The Company ¥ /N
Cost: %N
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 WZE—=FmWA—H -
31 March 2015 —E-F=ZA=1+—H
k-_T-—RF=A=+—H 2 3 5
Accumulated depreciation: BEHE -
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 RZZE—=FMA—H "
31 March 2015 —E-UFE=ZA=+—H
kZZT—RF=A=+—H 2 3 5
Carrying amount: IREE
At 31 March 2015 RZB-A=A=+—H - - -
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—WMF=A=+—H - - -
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. IREME
HK$'000
FAT
Group rEE
Fair value: NEE
At 1 April 2013 and 2014 R-_E—=FR-_F—NFMOMA—H -
Additions through acquisition of HREHTE A BRE (H3E31@)
subsidiaries (Note 31(a)) 41,875
Change in fair value included TIAE e 2 A FEZE) (Hi3ES)
in other gains (Note 5) 1,250
As 31 March 2014 RZE—mOF=A=+—H 43,125
Change in fair value included PIAE e 2 A FEZE) (FIEES)
in other gains (Note 5) 625
At 31 March 2015 R-Z-—HF=A=+—H 43,750
The rental income earned by the Group from its investment properties leased out AREEAEFRARBRKLHELH ZREMEMSGH
under operating leases amounted to HK$1,312,000 (2014: HK$780,000) for the e WA A&1,312,000% 7t ( = F — 0 F : 780,0007%8
year. Direct operating expenses arising on the investment properties in the year TT) o ANFERIRE Y EE ENERLE R R 72,000
amounted to HK$72,000 (2014: HK$61,000). BT (ZF—M%F : 61,0007 °
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March 2015 has RZE-—RAF=ZA=+—AFEB2REMEZATFE
been arrived at on market value basis carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an ThmBY BEGHEMKFITTEEB AR QAGEMESE
independent firm of professional valuer who holds a recognised and relevant EEEmMEL  KMNTHEBEBERATISEERT R
professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category HEHEEER  YAHENIREDENNE RERAE
of the investment properties being valued. FERAAE R o
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value BEMENRNFEREIRLEERATERTE - Y RE
measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balance is RATEEHOEESHN LEX -

set out in the above table.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AT SRR M= ()

31 March 2015 —ZE—HAF=A=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. IREM=E (18)

Change in unrealised gain for the year included in profit or loss for investment RZZE—RF=A=1+—ARBREVESALEE
properties held at 31 March 2015 amounted to HK$625,000 (2014: BEBZZ AERNEES) 56250008 T (= —M4E :
HK$1,250,000). 1,250,000 7T) °

The major inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Group’s investment

REBRENEQNFEAEBMAZIEGABERINT

properties are set out below:— X :
2015 —E-HF
Relationship of
unobservable
Investment Fair value Valuation technique Significant inputs to fair
properties hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs value
RERMTR TABEHEHRE Sensitivity
REWE AFESR  TEHARRE EATTRERABSE  ATEZHE B
Commercial units Level 3 Comparison approach Recent market asking The higher the If the market asking
[EE3RVE FIM The key input is recent price of comparables, asking price, price to the valuation
market asking price of taking into account the higher the model is 1% higher/
comparables of the discount on fair value lower, while all the
teESE asking price and size LEHEE - BlA other variables were
FTERABBRROH between the subject FERS held constant, the
A LLER W2 2 TS properties and the fair value would
B comparables, ranging increase/decrease by
from HK$33,000 to HK$888,000.
HK$35,000 per square 1H1E@$ﬁ’*”2ﬁﬁ'i%laﬂfﬁ
meter. B HA 1%
B Epa i ihl] ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@““%{%ﬁ%
B - EERBEFNR T RNTHERIG
ERE7E SRl ES bu/ 2> 888,000 7%
2R BEBEGTH JTe
33,000 7T & 35,000/%8
7T
Car park spacing Level 3 Comparison approach Recent market asking The higher the If the asking price to the
located in the FE34 The key input is recent price of comparables, asking price, valuation model is 1%
same building market asking price of taking into account of the higher the higher/lower, while
of the above comparables the discount on asking fair value all the other variable
commercial thESE price and location EERS - A were held constant,
units FEHABE AT between the subject TERS the fair value would
AT i pg 3 A ESAEM 2 TS properties and the increase/decrease by
BUERKE e comparables, ranging HK$7,000.
ZOREAL from HK$225,000 to 4 ER A > R

HK$375,000 per car
park spacing.
AL BOREA 2 T AT 5
BB - & ERBEFN
& BIRYR A LB
B2 - HEHT
SHEE{L 225,000 L&
375,000 7T

BRI RB AR AR

S FA 1% - T
HAn S E ST
ANFEBIEN, R
7,000587T

2014/15F
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
BATS SRR M ok (48)

31 March2015 —Z—HF=A=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. IREM=E (18)

REERENENFEFAEMBZEEWABERANT
X (4) -

The major inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties are set out below (Continued):—

2014 —B—mE

Relationship of
unobservable

68

Investment Fair value Valuation technique Significant inputs to fair
properties hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs value
fRERAM R FABRHERE Sensitivity
REMH AHEER TEBARE ERTAHREABE DN EZBEE BRE
Commercial units Level 3 Comparison approach Recent market asking The higher the If the market asking
[EEX: v FIH The key input is recent price of comparables, asking price, price to the valuation
market asking price of taking into account of the higher the model is 1% higher/
comparables the discount on asking fair value lower, while all the
teEsE price, size, facilities and &5 EE - 82 other variables were
* Eig A SIS AT H building management EEES held constant, the
AL B % 7 TSR between the subject fair value would
B properties and the increase/decrease by
comparables, ranging HK$524,000.
from HK$30,000 to fin i EHRE 2 TSR E
HK$34,000 per square Eh0 WA 1% 0
meter. FiE E th S B
AT B YEE 2 3 BT 5 TE - RTERKE
& - R BREFM - 0/ F 524,000
EREL/E IRl ARES TT ©
2R R RKE
ER - ®EAETH
30,0007% 7T 2= 34,0007
7T
Car park spacing Level 3 Comparison approach The selling price The higher the If the selling price to the
located in the EI3R The key input is selling obtained from the selling price, the valuation model is 1%

same building price of comparables building management higher the fair higher/lower, while

of the above obtained from building office of the Group’s value all the other variable

commercial management office investment properties EEBR s - Al were held constant,

units of the Group’s of HK$263,000 per car EEES the fair value would

RIPAEL Fifip 2 investment properties park spacing increase/decrease by

EUBERKRE AV BEAKEREMEZ K HK$21,000

2 SAENL FEBABIE RS EEBRAZMSH R ERE 2 EE1E
EIREWMELKREE EE - REAEM n/ m1% - mAA
B AEPSZ AL 263,000/ 7T HA ST
BUREMEE NFEFEM, D

21,000 87T °

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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16.

17.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ highest and best
use, which does not differ from their actual use.

The Group investment properties are situated in the PRC and held under
medium-term leases.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

FA T S R A AL (4R

31 March2015 —Z—HF=HA=+—H

16. IREMF (&)

RNFEFENRE M ERS RRERS - BEER
AL EER -

AEBEMRFBEZEMEDRETHEERSS -

17. PGB S s

The Company
NN

2015 2014

—E-AF —E—mEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD + HRAA 21 21
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURFT B A RIFRIE 216,895 212,535
216,916 212,556
Less: Provision for impairment loss B R EEERE (170,790) (166,430)
46,126 46,126

Amounts due to subsidiaries FEHB B A RIFIA 2,211 19,508

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are interest-free and unsecured. In
the opinion of the directors, the amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are not
repayable within 12 months from the end of the reporting period and was
therefore shown in the statement of financial position as non-current assets and
liabilities.

During the year, the directors reviewed the financial position of subsidiaries
and identified that certain subsidiaries have suffered continuous net losses
for past several years and these subsidiaries had net liabilities as at 31 March
2015. Accordingly, an additional impairment loss of HK$4,360,000 (2014:
HK$4,264,000) was recognised for the year ended 31 March 2015.

g (R MBARZRE B RERR - TR
R U (RN B AR FOR B AR RS BARE 1218
ANEE - HISIR R RIERBAER AR -

FA-BERIMBRAOVZHBMRRLHEEE THER
ARBESFRESSBRIEMZEMNBEARIR S
—RE=A=+—HEAEFHE - At - 4,360,000% T
ZRBINREEE (ZF— MU : 4,264,000/ 70) EREE
—ZT-RF=A=t+—HIFETFUER -

B RHASE AR AR 2014/15F

69



70

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

PA T S R P L (4B

31 March2015 —Z—HF=A=+—H

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2015 are as follows:

17. PRGBS 2

35 <

&

R-ZE—RAF=ZA=+—H " HBRAIZFHBENOT :

Name of company Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary shares/ of equity
registration registered capital attributable to
and operation paid up the Company Principal activities
A ERTEER N
REEE SR & i B BREAMER FEEREEDL TEXEK
Direct Indirect
=¢:3 A
Thiz Technology British Virgin US$100 100 - Investment holding
Group Holdings Islands/Hong Kong 1003E7T WEER
Limited RBRLESBE
Thizlinux Inc. British Virgin Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong 127 WEER
HEBELRS /BB
Thizbiz Inc. British Virgin Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong 127 WEER
HEBELRS /BB
Thiz.com Inc. British Virgin US$200,000 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong 200,000 7T REER
HEBELRS /BB
Kingray International Inc. British Virgin US$2,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Taiwan 2,000,000 7T REER
KBRS /A8
Thiz.com (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited B 10,0008 7T and provision of
BN FIfE e i (%) management
BRATA services
REER R
RHER RS
Thiz Design Group Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited B 10,0008 7T and provision of

Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AT SRR M= ()

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=H=+—H

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. PRiGBIB A S g (18)

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued of equity
registration ordinary shares/ attributable to
Name of company and operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
B W ERTEBEREE NS
IR B S it B HEfEAR EBiEREBEDE FEHEK
Direct Indirect
HiE s

RBHERESN Taiwan NT$1,700,000 - 100 Trading business
ERAERMBRAR AE 1,700,000 571 & # H5ER
BENAE]

Beijing Thiz Ying Jia PRC, limited US$1,750,000 - 100 Trading business
International Trading liability 1,750,000 7T EEES
Co., Limited (*Ying Jia”) ~ company
(Note) B AREERA

Ik 7 B & 52 B R
AEBRAR ([&5])

(FaE)

ThizLinux Software PRC, limited US$1,300,000 - 100 Provision of technical
(Shenzhen) Company liability 1,300,000 37T support to Linux
Limited (Note) company based software and

BIRSE 1 CRY) BIR AR FE - ARETAR hardware products
(FaE) A Linux R T

Z B sz %

1B (E8)BfABRAR  PRC, Limited Liability US$340,000 - 100 Property investment

(“JingRui”) (Note) company 340,000 7T MR E

(M58t 1) (BiI5E)

HE - BRAERR

Note: The subsidiaries are registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC
law.

In the opinion of the directors, the above subsidiaries principally affected the
results of the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BiEE - RSB RRREFBEIAREMZINEEEDRE -

BEERR LAMBRREAREAFEREFERY
BIRKNEEFEITIEIND - MRHEEGHERR
ZFEE BEEARAEEARBRIE

B RHASE AR AR 2014/15F
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])
B 5 R R Mt =E (48)

31March2015 —Z—hAF=A=+—H

18. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS 18. IRFERDZE AN
The Group
rEE
HK$'000
FT
Cost: PR
At 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 R_E—=FNA-—BR-_ZT—NF=A=1+—H 47,302
Written off 6| (47,302)
At 31 March 2015 R-FE—RAF=A=+—H -
Accumulated amortisation and RETEH SORE R ¢
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 RZE—=FMNA—HBER=-T—MF=A=+—H 47,302
Written off 5 (47,302)
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—RAF=RA=+—H -
Carrying amount: BRTEI(E :
At 31 March 2014 and 2015 R-E—NFER-_FT—HF=A=+—H -
Deferred development costs represented costs incurred for development of the BEERAENAERBAFEREREER 2 LnuxBHFEE
Group’s Linux based software in prior years. PR o

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 19. B Eith[EURRIA ~ 2 E R FRTFRIA

PREPAYMENTS
The Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FT
Trade receivables, net of allowance FEMARIE (FBREAE) 51 53
Other receivables, deposits and HibEIGRIA « Be RIEFKRIE
prepayments, net of allowance (FpREE) 392 390
443 443
No interest is charged on trade and other receivables. JE MG B EoAth FE R IA NG 8 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

@)

The average credit period to the Group’s customers is 90 days (2014:
90 days). As at 31 March 2015, the ageing analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts, based on the invoice date

was as follows:

FA T S R A AL (4R

31 March2015 —Z—HF=HA=+—H

19. BEIR R EHhEWRIE - BRERFAMRIA

(&)

(@)

REBGETEFPZFHEERAQOA (ZT—WF
90H) - R=T—AF=A=1+—H REEZAH
HEAEERKERE(ENBRRREE) 2REKD
HiEUNNE

The Group
REE

2015 2014
—E-AfF —ZT—EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
0 - 30 days 0ZE30H 27 27
31 - 60 days 31E260H - -
61 -90 days B61E90H - 26
91 - 180 days 91E180H - -
181 — 360 days 1812360 H - -
Over 360 days 360 B 24 -
51 53

At 31 March 2015, the Group’s trade receivables of HK$280,000 (2014:
HK$280,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that are in financial difficulties
and management assessed that the collectability of receivables is remote.
The Group made accumulated specific allowances for doubtful debts of
HK$280,000 (2014: HK$280,000) in previous year. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Except for the above, no further allowance has been made for estimated
irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods and provision of services.

RZZ—AF=A=+—H ' A%E2280,000%7T
(ZZ—4F : 280,000/ 7T) 2 FEWBRIBIR AR E
BHIRRE o @RI E &R IE 8RR S
ZEPER BERERRZIZEWIEZ ATKRE
MR o AREEERB S EEH 280,000 7T (=
T4 ¢ 280,00087T) 2 25t REEFEEME - K
REWERZE AT A TR o

Bk Lalish o LI E S M KR IR 2 B EH AT
W R FRIEE e — 2P R o

B RHASE AR AR 2014/15F
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])
B 5 R R Mt =E (48)

31March2015 —Z—hAF=A=+—H

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)  The ageing analysis of trade receivables which are not impaired are as

follows:

19. BN EthEWRIE - BERFAMTRIA
(&)

o) RREZEUREZRERIITAT

The Group
EE

2015 2014

—E-afF —Z—E

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FTT

Neither past due nor impaired 3 fsE B SR E 27 53

Less than 1 month past due BEL 1 E A - -

1 to 3 months past due #H1 £ 31E A - -

More than 3 months but not B EA31E A LA LB BB 6 1E A

more than 6 months past due - -
More than 6 months but not BEA61E A LA EETEB121E A

more than 12 months past due 24 -

Over one year —FE - -

51 53

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a small

number of independent customers that have no recent history of default.

Accordingly, the management believes that no impairment allowance

is necessary in respect of these balances as there have not been a

significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

©

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade receivables
during the year, including both specific and collective loss components, are

FA T S R A AL (4R

31 March2015 —Z—HF=HA=+—H

19. BEIR R EHhEWRIE - BRERFAMRIA

(&)

(©

R KRR RIFE (RIS R EREE
5) 2 2B

as follows:
The Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —Z-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At 1 April RMA—H 280 253
Allowance for doubtful debts RIREE - 27
Exchange adjustments FE 3 8 - -
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 280 280

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on other receivables
during the year, including both specific and collective loss components, are
as follows:

(@

FR - HMBRHRIEZ RIEEE (BESERERE
1BED) 2 BB

i

The Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—pmE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FHT
At 1 April and 31 March REA—BE=A=+—H 848 848

At 31 March 2015, the Group’s other receivables of HK$848,000
(2014: HK$848,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables relate to balances which are expected
to be irrecoverable as they have been outstanding for over one year and
there has been no settlement despite various collection actions taken. The
Group made an accumulated specific allowances for doubtful debts of
HK$848,000 (2014: HK$848,000) in previous year. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

RZTE—RE=A=+—H ' K&E 848,000/
JTL(ZZF—PU4F : 848,000/ 7T ) 2 EAth FE U SR IE 1 (&
RIS E AL IRE © ERI 2 RERKRFIERESRE
B BECHMSBENRTE S REEEH—
FLEREE - FEBDRBEZREFIBET A
Uz 8] iV H 848,000 7 7T ( = F — P 4 : 848,000 4
T0) 2 RERERFS B o NEBRWEMZ AR
BERERE -

B RHASE AR AR 2014/15F
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

PA T S R P L (4B

31 March2015 —Z—HF=A=+—H

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

20. iRTTEEFENIRE

The Group The Company
rEE ARAFE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF T —F —E-HF T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHERT FET FHER FAT
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRRE 20,598 15,427 43 7,451

At 31 March 2015, included in the Group’s bank balances and cash were
amounts of approximately HK$3,118,000 (2014: HK$2,812,000) denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and kept in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies. However, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

21. TRADE PAYABLES

RZTZ—RAF=A=+—R0 AEBZRIT/FLRRS
F#3,118,000/ 7L ( =T — U4 : 2,812,000/ 70) AAR
BIARBDEE  WHERAFE - ARETATEHY
BEMEE - A RIBRBESMNEBIRHRTEREE - &
ERMNEEERTE  AEESBEREETINEES
ZRHRITHBARE BHMEE -

21. [EfTERIA

The Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-RHF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiT
Trade payables JERBRTE 63 63

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchase.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables at the end of reporting

ENRETIEBRESRBIAREESS -

RIERRZ EBNRBEZREAMOT

period:
The Group
REE

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
0-30 days 0Z30H - -
31 - 60 days 31E60H - -
61 -90 days 61290H - 27
91 - 180 days 91E 180 H - -
181 — 360 days 1812360 H - -
Over 360 days 360 B 63 36
63 63

Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15




Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

FA T S R A AL (4R

31 March2015 —Z—HF=HA=+—H

22. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 22. EfthfEfTFRIA - BB E KR IESTFRIA
ACCRUALS
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-fHF —EUF —E-EF —Z—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHTT FHExT FHT
Deposit received Blize 516 508 - -
Other payables and accruals H i fE{~ 3R 0E [ FE AT RRIA 1,324 1,278 827 808
1,840 1,786 827 808
23. AMOUNT DUE TO THE SPOUSE OF A DIRECTOR 23. [EfTEFHE BRI
The amount is unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate calculated JERT 2 RIBT IR - REAREENEAE (RAEE
on a monthly basis and repayable on demand. Interest charged during the year HE) REREREE - KFEEMNFEA48,000%8 T
amounted to HK$48,000 (2014: HK$61,000). (ZT—P% : 61,000585T) °
24. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 24. [EfTEERIB
The amount due to Mr. Lin Chien Hsin of HK$5,907,000 (2014: HK$6,777,000) JRE A5 BR 2 S5 S A 2 3RIE 15,907,000 T ( =& — Y 4F -
is unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate per annum. Mr. Lin 6,777,000 7T ) Ty IR IR R IR B AR EEFN R L -
Chien Hsin has confirmed in writing to the Group that he will not demand MEFEEAEEAAMAEERER - Ai§ERMEHR
for settlement of the amount of HK$4,230,000 and accrued interest of B+ {8 A AT g 5 EFIE 4,230,000 %8 7T K FERTF
HK$1,677,000 within 12 months from the end of reporting period. Interest 81,677,000 7T ° AN R FIE /230,000 T (ZF
charged during the year amounted to HK$230,000 (2014: HK$278,000). —PO4F : 278,000 7T) °
25. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER 25. [EfTARSRFRIB

The amount is unsecured, interest bearing at 3% per annum. On 31 March
2015, the shareholder confirmed in writing that it will not demand for the
settlement of the principal amount of HK$23,000,000 (2014: HK$21,000,000)
and accrued interest of HK$1,291,000 (2014: HK$870,000) on or before 30
June 2016. Interest charged during the year amounted to HK$420,000 (2014:
HK$576,000). During the year, pursuant to the subscription agreement dated
20 June 2014 entered into between the Company and the shareholder, the
shareholder agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of 100,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at HK$0.1 each to partially settle the amount to the
extent of HK$10,000,000 due from the Group. A gain of approximately of
HK$3,900,000 arising from settlement of this debt is recognised in the profit or
loss. Details of which were set out in Note 27(b) to the financial statements.

JERT AR R FIE R AR - RENEI% R - RZET—
FZA=1+—8 ZREEEABERR T EFEA
=+ BRI E EKEZEFIE 23,000,000 (ZF—MN
% : 21,000,0007% 7T ) & FEEH A 81,291,000 T (=&
— P4 : 870,000/ 7T ) © F A IR FI| £ 3 420,000 74 7T
(ZZ—1H4 : 576,000 7T) « RAFE - RIEARQFE
BRIV BESHAZT—NENA -+ ANRE RS
ZIE R R E SR E0.1 TR AN A 7] 100,000,000
IR &A% - LAE BP0 B MR & B % 58 743 10,000,000 7
7T o BB I ERE LM RE L 3,900,000 8T E R B
AR - BRAFF BRI TE R I TE 27 (0) ©

kil
H
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

PA T S R P L (4B

31 March2015 —Z—HF=A=+—H

26. LOAN

The loan was unsecured, interest bearing at prime rate quoted by a bank
in Hong Kong and was repayable commencing on the thirteenth months
after the loan drawdown date on 7 June 2011. During the year, pursuant to
the subscription agreement dated 20 June 2014 entered into between the
Company and the lender, the lender agreed to subscribe for an aggregate
of 72,965,360 ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.1 each to fully settle
the amount of approximately HK$7,296,000 due from the Group. A gain
of approximately of HK$2,846,000 arising from settlement of this debt is
recognised in the profit or loss. Details of which were set out in Note 27(b) to the
financial statements.

26.

-

ERBEER  BEBS—BRTARZEBSESRF X
AEREREFERAS -—T——FXAtA%FT=
EREE - RAFE  BRERNARIEERAGTZHEA
ZE-NEXNAZTANRERZE  ERARBEUER
F{EO0.1 /B ILRBAA T 72,965,360 ¢ LiBAY - LAKEUE
KA SEE S 5L 7,296,0008 7T - B I EKHTE
A #)2,846,000 8 T HI K EE R B e WEER - B BERN
MISERKR M 27(0)

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BRI
Number of Number of
shares shares
of HK$0.1 each of HK$1 each HK$°000
SREGEI BT BREE1ET
HWRHEE HRGEE FER
The Group and the Company KAEBRAAT
Authorised: SR
Ordinary shares AR
At 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 R-ZZE—=FNA—-AK 4,300,000,000 - 430,000
—E-NE=F=+—H
Share consolidation (Note (c)) W&in& o (M5 () (4,300,000,000) 430,000,000 -
At 31 March 2015 RZZE-—HF=A=+—H - 430,000,000 430,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHRE
Ordinary shares TimAs
At 1 April 2013 R-Z—=FNA—H 1,682,737,250 - 168,274
Issue of shares on acquisition of assets FBWEHNBARMEEE
and liabilities through acquisition of RaBEEIRG (@)
subsidiaries (Note (a)) 400,000,000 - 40,000
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE-—MFE=A=+—H 2,082,737,250 - 208,274
Capitalisation of loans (Note (b)) ERER (B (o) 172,965,360 - 17,296
Share consolidation (Note (c)) W& oF (M5 () (2,255,702,610) 225,570,261 -
At 31 March 2015 RZZE-—HF=A=+—H - 225,570,261 225,570
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

@)

In prior year, pursuant to the Group’s acquisition of the entire equity
interest in Kingray International Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Jing Rui (collectively the “Kingray Group”) as further detailed in Note
31(a), 400,000,000 ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.1 each of the
Company were issued as the consideration at fair value of approximately
HK$45,958,000, of which HK$40,000,000 was credited to issued capital
and the remaining balance of HK$5,958,000 was credited to the share
premium account.

Pursuant to the subscription agreements dated 20 June 2014 entered
into between the Company and each of Best Vigor Inc. (as mentioned in
Note 26) and Extra Bright Trading Limited (as mentioned in Note 25), a
shareholder of the Company, (collectively the “Subscribers”) respectively,
the Subscribers agreed to subscribe for and the Company agreed to issue
and allot for an aggregate of 172,965,360 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
at the issue price of HK$0.1 per share to settle the loans to the extent of
HK$17,296,000 owed by the Group to the Subscribers. The subscriptions
were completed on 17 July 2014. A gain of approximately HK$6,746,000
representing the difference between the nominal\subscribed value
of approximately HK$17,296,000 and the fair value of the shares of
approximately HK$10,550,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the
year with the corresponding amount of HK$6,746,000 debited to share
premium account.

At the annual general meeting held on 26 September 2014, the
shareholders of the Company approved the implementation of share
consolidation on the basis that every 10 issued and unissued then existing
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company was
consolidated into 1 consolidated ordinary share of HK$1 each.

FA T S R A AL (4R
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27. BN (5&)

e

(@)

RBEFE - REANEEUEE R Kingray International
Inc. R E2 &AW B R E B (57 [Kingray 5
B ) v 2EbiEm CE—ZFBENMES@E) - BA
F]3%17 400,000,000 IR FREEO0.1 8 T2 EimARIE
RN T{EX) 45,958,000 7T 2 (& + H 40,000,000
BT ABBITIRA - MR T 5,958,000 B Tat AR
DIRERR o

BIBEAR QT2 B ELBest Vigor Inc. (R a0kt 5t 26 Fit)
¥ Extra Bright Trading Limited ( 3 20 Fff 7% 25 Fff it )
(RARRR) (BB RBEADRZZT—NFRA
ZT Rz RE RS RBARERE AR
RIRAENETESKEEII B TRITREEAHK
172,965,360 f% I i i% - LUBEAREE L RREA
REB D B3R - © %88 17,296,000/8 7T - REEH1H
ERZZ—WFEEA+EBTK - EE/REELN
17,296,000 7 7T E2 f% {5 2 SF{E 49 10,550,000 B 7L 2
EREEHX16,746,0008 T2 e - ERAFEER

0 R $ 586,746,000 8 TR B9 m [EERINER -

RZZE-MEAATRBRTHERRBFAE -
AARBERMAZERNDEH - HEER/RARR
RO F+HRSREECBTZEBTRAEITRE
il A ft AR RRBRAH —REE1.08TZ A 6
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AT IRA M=k (48

31 March 2015

28.

29.

Thiz Technology Group Limited

“ET-RF=A=t-H

CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES 28. OJ#afg 2 A%
Number of Number of
shares shares
of HK$0.1 each of HK$1 each HK$’000
SREE0.1 BTN SREE1ET
R EE HRGEE FHET
The Group and the Company AEBRAAT
Authorised: VETE ¢
Non-voting convertible R ERAIRRE LR
preference shares
At 1 April 2013 and R=ZZE—=FMA—H
31 March 2014 F=—E-—NFE=A=+—H 900,000,000 - 90,000
Share consolidation &t & BF (900,000,000) 90,000,000 -
At 31 March 2015 NZE—RAF=A=+—H - 90,000,000 90,000

The Company had no outstanding issued convertible preference shares as at 31
March 2014 and 2015.

At the annual general meeting held on 26 September 2014, the shareholders of
the Company approved the implementation of share consolidation on the basis
that every 10 unissued then existing preference shares of HK$0.1 each in the
share capital of the Company was consolidated into 1 consolidation preference
share of HK$1 each.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 5 August 2004. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate the eligible participants for their
contributions to the Company and help the Company in retaining its existing
employees and recruiting additional employees and to provide them with a direct
economic interest in attaining the long term business objectives of the Company.
Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include any employee,
proposed employee (including any executive and Non-executive Directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries), adviser, consultant, agent, contractor, customer
and supplier of any member of the Group.

The Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for ten years from 5 August

2004 during which the directors may make offer to grant share options to eligible
participants.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of shares available for issue under options which may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue. The maximum number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant must not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of the above
limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval with such participant and his
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) abstaining from voting.

If options are granted to a connected person (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) or his associates, the granting of such options will be subject to all
independent Non-executive Directors’ (excluding Independent Non-executive
Director who is a grantee) approval; where options are proposed to be granted
to a connected person who is also a substantial shareholder or Independent
Non-executive Director or any of their respective associates which will result
in the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted or to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person under the Share Option Scheme in the past
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant (1) exceeding 0.1%
of the total issued shares for the time being; and (2) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, the granting of such options will be subject to approval of
the independent shareholders of the Company taken on a poll. All connected
persons will abstain from voting (except that any connected person may vote
against the resolution).

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company as
consideration for the grant. The option will be offered for acceptance for a period
of 5 days from the date on which the option is granted. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable by the directors and shall not be more
than ten years from the date of grant and the directors may provide restrictions
on the exercise of the option during the period an option may be exercised.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the board of directors
at their absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the grant, which must
be a trading day; (i) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; or (jii) the nominal value of a share.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one share of the
Company. Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meeting.

No option was granted under the Share Option Scheme during both years and
no option was outstanding as at 31 March 2014 and 2015.

Rt 75 S R R AL (4R
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29. A IESHE (48)

IRIEA X R FT R4 2 B AR 5t 81 1R (2 B A e i ) 7 3%
TzhREHE  aATEBBEEITRMNZ10% °
RIS BHAEA12EARERTEES R T AR TE
F2uE 7 BEE(BECITERERTITERZEEE) M
EERETERTZENZESHE  THEBEBREAHZ
EETBRNZ1% < £ FRTHBE Dl RE 2 EAER
T MRERIRIE - MZE2EEREBEAL(EE
FAIZER EmHR) A R s -

MAEEAT(ERERAIER ETHRA) KEBEAL
RILERE  ZEBRECRLASHABLIERITE
F(TREFAERBEAZBYIFNTES) MRS AIE
B MEREA B AETERRIBI IR TERKE
EEACHBATZEBEATRLERE  MRER
RELAHR(BEER) AILEBE 12 A BEETFRE
BREFETERTREETZATZERE(REDT
6 - THEH R MR TR 2 BEARHE) B AR RS T8 2 R1n 42
(1) BAEREEITRMEE0.1%  RQBEBEERE
B AR D 2 Y B 5T & H 48 (B8 38 5,000,000 7T - Al
ZEBBRRE BB AGRRR B RE U ES X E
BFAMEE - FTEMEATAREEE (ETABEAL
REREBARER) -
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TEHFR

BRERETETRE M TEREZ SRAEE
HEFSREMBEAT  HZERTEBERUT=E
ZEmE (REEAS(WAERRSH)RMH KA
RERATHRMIE ¢ () BERE BT RER S B R
ZFTARE TR IIUTIE ¢ o (i) RDEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AT IRA M=k (48

31 March2015 —ZE—HF=A=+—H

30. RESERVES

The Group

(@

Capital redemption reserve

The reserve represents the amount equivalent to the nominal value of the
Company’s shares cancelled arising from repurchased shares in prior
years.

Special reserve

The reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of
the shares of the Company and the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation to rationalise the
structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the GEM.

Translation reserve

The reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 4(m).

30. f&
&S

(@)

B Ol 6

ZREBHEEENARFANREFEELZ EIHEER
BEEZ &5 -

SRl

FRlFEEAA RN EERRSEARRROR
BIER EMRBEBAEBAEERBAKENBL
B EE . 5

B LR

X REREMARREBINEBI B RRmESL
ZIERZRE o ZRBEM AR SR BREE

Reserves of the Company 0 AARZFHE
Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium Reserve losses Total
RADEE EXEEHE Byt @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET FET FHET
(Note 30(a))
(GEXEN
Balance at 1 April 2013 RZE-=FMA—Bz&H 28,060 84 (201,007) (172,863)
Issuance of shares on acquisition FRWERB AR
of assets and liabilities through YEEERAR
acquisition of subsidiaries BTG (M5 27()
(Note 27(a)) 5,958 - - 5,958
Loss and total comprehensive BERAFE
income for the year PEMEESE - - (8,108) (8,108)
Balance at 31 March 2014 R-Z-WEZA=+-A}
and at 1 April 2014 “T-MFMA-B B 34,018 84 (209,115) (175,013)
Capitalisation of loans (Note 27(0)) BFENM (FE27() (6,746) - - (6,746)
Loss and total comprehensive EBRRAFE2EWELE
income for the year - - (680) (680)
Balance at 31 March 2015 RZT-RF=A=t—-Bz&#% 27,272 84 (209,795) (182,439)

Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

30. RESERVES (Continued)

31.

The Group (Continued)

Under the Companies Law (Cap. 22 Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and

revised) of the Cayman lIslands, the share premium is distributable to the

shareholders of the Company, provided that immediately following the date on

which the dividends is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a

position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

@)

Acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition of subsidiaries

In prior year, the Group acquired the entire equity interests of Kingray
Group from an independent third party at a nominal consideration
of HK$40,000,000 which was satisfied by allotment and issue of
400,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company with par value of HK$0.1
each. Further details are set out in the Company’s circular dated 19 July
2013.

The principal activity of Kingray Group is property investment and its
principal assets are investment properties located in Shanghai, the PRC.
The Kingray Group did not constitute an integrated set of activities and
assets as no significant process was acquired. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the acquisition was in substance an acquisition
of assets and liabilities, being the investment properties located in
Shanghai and its associated assets and liabilities through acquisition of
subsidiaries.

Since the acquisition was considered as an acquisition of assets and
liabilities and the consideration was fully settled by the Company’s equity
instruments, it was an equity-settled share-based payment transaction and
accordingly the fair value of the equity instruments issued in connection
with the acquisition should be determined based on the fair value of the
assets and liabilities acquired.

Rt 75 S R R AL (4R
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30. f&fs (5&)

31.

REE (&)

REFASEREARA(—NAAN—FEIFAMF2E - &
A RER]) - ZREEED KRS AR - ARBEAE
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(@)

BREMERM T

BBYEHBARWBEEENREE

RIBEFE - ANEEBE B E =5 WEEKingray £3
22 g - BEMRE A40,000,00087T + BEIBAC
% [2 317 400,000,000 IR B AR EE 0.1 BT 2 A A A
@k AAIN - ARE—FHBEHNELRB
HAEZT—=FLAtTIAZEHK-

Kingray S Bl F X AMERE HXZEER
MNARRE EFZIREYE - RN EREEAEKR
AR - B Kingray B NMEK —EHFE 2 EBHRE
E-ARREZRA WHEEETREERBEY
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
BATS SRR M ok (1)

31 March2015 —Z—HF=A=+—H

31. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)

(@ Acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition of subsidiaries

(Continued)

Details of the fair value of net asset acquired in respect of the acquisition of

Kingray Group are as follows:

31.

e eMBRMEE (1)

@ BBUENBARKBEERERE)

BRI Kingray SREFTKEBHNEEFENAFEZ
BT

HK$’'000
FTT
Net assets acquired: R 2 EEFE -
Property, plant and Y - BE REE (HEE15)
equipment (Note 15) 1
Investment properties (Note 16) wEM (FE16) 41,875
Bank balances and cash RITREFRRE 4,794
Other payables, deposits HifENFIE - BlIRS RIERT KB
received and accruals (503)
Receipt in advance TEWIE (209)
45,958
Consideration satisfied by: IRAREZER :
Issuance of shares of the BATARERS (FRAFE)
Company, at fair value 45,958
Net cash inflow arising : WEFEEZRESRATE .
on acquisition:
Bank balances and g RITHE T RR S
cash acquired

(b)  Major non-cash transactions

As detailed in Note 27(b), during the year, the Company issued share

capital of approximately HK$17,296,000 for settlement of loans from a

lender and a shareholder amounting to approximately HK$17,296,000 and

resulted in a gain of approximately HK$6,746,000 with the corresponding

amount debited to share premium.

Thiz Technology Group Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])

32. OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS

Operating leases - lessor

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease rentals
receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

32.

BTSRRI EE (48)

31 March2015 —Z—F&=A=+—8
KEMSHIE
KERE-HEA

RZZ-RF=A=+—08 AEERETAIRHELS
MEERREBEERE S AENT

The Group
rEE

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FAT
Within one year —FR 641 539
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_ZFERF (BEEEMF) 289 563
930 1,102

The investment properties have committed tenants for an average term of one to
two years.

Operating leases - lessee
As at 31 March 2015, the Group had outstanding commitments under non-

cancellable operating leases in respect of office premises and staff quarter,
which fall due as follows:

REMEZ AP FHAGHERR—FEMF

KBRS - RAMEA

RZZE-—RF=ZA=+—H TEERPL=EWERE
IEETAREAEEE  BERARETRAE  JBEM
T

The Group
TEE

2015 2014
—E-AF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
Within one year —FR 386 179
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EERF(RIEERWE) 76 1
462 190

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for the office
premises and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to
two years with fixed monthly rentals.

REHERAEARERENAENERETHERENZ
e BHTHRE—2-F BAXNETES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 March2015 —Z—HF=A=+—H

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. HAREE

References are made to an announcement on 13 March 2006 in relation to a RN _EERE=ZA+=ZB B M BRARQ
claim of service commission of HK$3,750,000 (RMB3,000,000), together with A-—HhENBAREE S EERARBERRR
the interest of HK$284,000 (RMB227,000) by an ex-employee of Ying Jia, a %51/ £ 3,750,000 % 7t ( A & % 3,000,000 7T ) & [ F1| &
subsidiary of the Company in the PRC, against the Company. The ex-employee 284,000/8 7L (AR¥ 227,000 7T) ° FEART HZ B R1E
obtained a judgement in his favour in the court of the PRC (the “Ruling”). s8F(EE]D -

The Company’s legal advisers confirmed that, under the laws of Hong Kong and ARBVAZERER  BREERFASHEEE #HE
the Cayman Islands, there is no statutory mechanism for judgement made by the ERDEE# S E P EDERATERBHRAI R EBLH S
courts in the PRC to be enforceable either in Hong Kong or Cayman Islands. The BHERIT  AAREERE TG ThFERR
directors of the Company believe that the enforceability of the Ruling is doubtful MAEBBERAZREET T ERZERELY
and the Group is not liable to the claim. No provision has been made in these A B ERM SRR AVEL B -

financial statements in respect of any contingent liabilities arising from this claim.

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BRAEATRS
Material related party transactions and balances are as follows: BEREMEALR S REBRIT ¢
(a) Balances with related parties (a) BRABEALTZER
Details are disclosed in Notes 23, 24 and 25 to the financial statements. FIERIISIREMTE23 « 24 K 25 M EE o
(b) Interest charged by related parties (b) BREAEATWEZHNR
Details are disclosed in Notes 23, 24 and 25 to the financial statements. FIERIISIREMTE23 « 24 K 25 M EE o
(c) Compensation of key management personnel (c) XZ2ERASXEE
Details of directors’ emoluments are shown in Note 9(a) to the financial EEWE 2 FBERUBREM T @) °
statements.
The remuneration of other key management during the year was as FR - HbFSEREZMES0T ¢
follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FT
Short term benefits w2 ETE A 940 930
Post-employment benefits RREF] 4 38
981 968
The directors are of the opinion that balances with related parties and EERA BEREATZEHRAREA TR
related interest charged by related parties which also constitute connected ZEBREEKEIER ETBRATZEERS -
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules were carried out in the normal TIRAEE — R EKBIRPETRIZTER —RRE
course of business of the Group and conducted on terms no more FEWIZAGRETAL o

favourable than normal commercial terms.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

(i)  toensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern;

(i)  to provide an adequate return to shareholders;

(i) to support the Group’s sustainable growth; and

(iv) to provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers and acquisitions.

There is no change in the Group’s capital management objectives from prior
years.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio which is
calculated as total debts divided by total equity. Total debts are calculated as
total borrowings comprising amount due to the spouse of a director, amount
due to a director, amount due to a shareholder and loan, as shown in Notes
283, 24, 25 and 26. Total equity represents equity attributable to owners of the
Company comprising share capital and reserves as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group’s strategy is to keep the gearing ratio
as low as it can without material adverse impact on its liquidity.

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

R 5 S R AL (4R

31 March2015 —Z—HF=HA=+—H

35. EMEIREIR

REBEEREREHET ¢

() MRAEEBEHINGELEERETE:

(i) ABEFREHEEERR

(i) TEARERFELEE K

(v) IREEARLGEITAIRES OF R UREE -

BAFERL - ARBZERERERTELE) -
AEERBEANBEL R (RBEER NGRS TE) &
BN - BEBEVIZETEE (RERNESRBER
B ENESHKIE  EARRZERER(MHE2S -
24~ 2526t ) o AARERAIA N RIHA AEIGER - B
FEREMBRRARA OB AR ERE - REENKRER

BRI AR BELEREKT - BB TR
ASELEATHYE -

RIFEWR - AREZBELTHBOT

2015 2014

—E-EF —Z—mEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHER FAT

Total debts 4BEIR 31,466 37,443
Equity HEeas 30,152 18,932
Total debts to equity ratio BIETARE R 1.0 2.0

The Group sets the amount of equity capital in proportion to its overall financing
structure. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

AEERBERELBUIRETELASHE - AEEER
HARGEE YRBREEBLLREBREEZRBREE
EHAERE - BTRIFRFEEEARLE  AEEA
HBRETERRZBESSE  MERBERA - #1TH
Bk HEEENRIEELE -

REBENZIEBHEINZ BARERS -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AT IRA M=k (48

31 March 2015 =%

AF=A=+—8

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in the normal

course of the Group’s business are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and

currency risk.

(a)

(b)

Thiz Technology Group Limited

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Trade receivables are due
within 90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more
than 2 months past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an influence on credit risk but
to a lesser extent.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has a concentration of credit risk from
one of the five largest customers which related to software development
segment and accounted for 52.9% (2014: 50.9%) of the Group’s trade
receivables. There were no receivables from the remaining four (2014: four)
largest customers as at 31 March 2015 as they either paid monthly rentals
in advance or fully settled the debts during the year.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own
cash management, including the short term investment of cash surpluses
and the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to
approval by the Company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from related parties and other parties to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the end
of reporting period of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on rates
current at the end of reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and
the Company can be required to pay.
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ER - mBESRER  FERREEERR
(a) EERAMRK

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])
B 5 R R Bt aE (48)

31 March2015 —Z—AF=HA=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 36. TS RIREIR (58)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) mehExRM (&)
Total
contractual Within 1
Carrying undiscounted year or on Over 1
Amount cash flow demand year
EHEES: 3! R—FR
BREE BeRes FEER —FHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FET FHBT FET
The Group REE
2015 —E-AF
Trade payables FEFTERIE 63 63 63 -
Other payables, deposit HhEMZIE - B
received and accruals e KB UR 1,840 1,840 1,840 -
Amount due to a director EREEFE 5,907 6,202 - 6,202
Amount due to the spouse of a director ENESRBHE 1,268 1,332 1,332 -
Amount due to a shareholder JERMARR IR 24,291 25,786 - 25,786
33,369 35,223 3,235 31,988
2014 —T-mF
Trade payables JETBRIE 63 63 63 -
Other payables, deposit HipefE Bl
received and accruals ®e RIETE 1,786 1,786 1,786 -
Amount due to a director FENEEE 6,777 7,115 - 7,115
Amount due to the spouse [ETESRIBE
of a director 1,673 1,648 1,648 -
Amount due to a shareholder JER AR 0B 21,870 23,235 - 23,235
Loan B 7,223 7,942 - 7,942
39,292 41,789 3,497 38,292
The Company b NG|
2015 —E-1%
Other payables E fth FEIFRIE 827 827 827 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERBARIFE 2,211 2,211 - 2,211
3,038 3,038 827 2,211
2014 —T-mE
Other payables EfhfERTFRIR 808 808 808 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE P B A A 2R 19,508 19,508 - 19,508
20,316 20,316 808 19,508

BRI B AR A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AT IRA M=k (48

31 March2015 —ZE—HF=A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank balances and
borrowings with variable interest rates. Borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate
profile as monitored by management is set out below.

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group at the end

36. M RAREE (18)

(c) MIZREMRR

REEZ NEEREERIRERTBNETE 2R
TRERER - RIBFERF B ZERBAEE T
KBS MM ERER o A KE b E I EEERE 2R
BEN T

TSI AR BN R E R RIS o

of reporting period.

The Group
AEE
2015
—E-hF —Z—E
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
YRS BRI
% HK$’000 % HK$’'000
FERT FAT
Bank balances RITHETT 0.1% 20,582 0.1% 15,403
Variable rate borrowings EEDIIES =N
Loan A 5.0% - 5.0% 6,643
Amount due to a director ENEERIE 5.0% 4,230 5.0% 5,110
Amount due to the spouse FEREERBRIE
of a director 841 5.0% 1,097
5,071 12,850
Fixed rate borrowings EEFEEE
Amount due to a shareholder JE AR SRE 23,000 3.0% 21,000
Total borrowings BEEE 28,071 33,850

The interest rates and terms of repayment of the Group’s borrowings are
disclosed in Notes 23, 24, 25 and 26 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2015, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would increase/decrease the Group’s profit after taxation by approximately
HK$155,000 and decrease/increase accumulated losses by approximately
HK$155,000 (2014: decrease/increase the Group’s loss after taxation and
accumulated losses by approximately HK$26,000). Other components
of consolidated equity would not be affected by the general increase/
decrease in interest rates.
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36.

37.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the beginning of reporting period
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at the end of the reporting period.
The 100 basis points increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the end of next reporting period. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2014.

(d) Currency risk

Currency risk to the Group is minimal as most of the Group’s transactions
are carried out in the respective functional currencies of the group entities.

(e) Fair values estimation

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from
their fair values as at the end of respective periods.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s financial position and results of operations are sensitive to
accounting methods, assumptions and estimates that underlie the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. The Group bases the assumptions
and estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that
the Group believes to be reasonable and which form the basis for making
judgements about matters that are not readily apparent from other sources.
On an on-going basis, management evaluates its estimates. Actual results may
differ from those estimates as facts, circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of significant accounting policies, the judgements and other
uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported
results to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors to be considered
when reviewing the consolidated financial statements.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the actual
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

Rt 75 S R R AL (4R
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36. BiFsRPREIE (48)
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37. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

Impairment losses for trade receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for trade receivables resulting from the
inability of the customers to make the required payments. The Group bases
the estimates on the ageing of the trade receivables balance, customer credit-
worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of the
customers were to deteriorate, actual write-offs might be higher than expected
and could significantly affect the results of future periods.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties included in the Group’s financial statements require
measurement at fair value, as detailed in Note 16. The fair value measurement
of which utilises market observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation technique utilised are
(the ‘fair value hierarchy’):

. Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items
(unadjusted);

o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs (other than Level 1 inputs);
and

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market data)

Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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37. Bstibst KA (18)
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37.

38.

39.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued])

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

Fair value of investment properties (Continued)

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the lowest level of
the inputs used that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item.

The fair value of the investment properties was based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by an independent firm of professional valuer using
property valuation techniques which make use of those significant unobservable
inputs as mentioned in Note 16. A favourable or unfavourable change to these
inputs would result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and the corresponding amount of fair gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised at 31 March 2015 and 2014 may be categorised
as follows:

37.

38.

AT R P L (4R

31 March2015 —Z—HAF=HA=+—H

Zstd st KAE (18)

REMF 2 T E (1)

H%IE Bom bR HEREZIAB ATVEFERS
A B2 HEERBABIRMEE

REWXR 2 A FEDIZBIL X GEMRAYERGEL
(fEMKRE 16 AT iR 2 AT A BUREUR) BLIRE M E PR
HEITHWME - BRABEEN K TN EEH A EHRAKE
BREWEATERZE  UERRNBaNERNERATE
WanskEig -

EREERERNBENBIGNE

AEBEARAR-ZE—AFE-T—NF=A=1+—
HERZeMEERSRABZERESENAT

The Group The Company
rEE NG|
2014 2015 2014
—E-HF T —mF —E-HF T —mF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FAT
Financial assets SRMEE
Loans and receivables REER AT EZER
(including bank balances R e RIE
and cash), at amortised cost (BREBTEERES) 20,954 15,801 46,169 53,577
Financial liabilities, RESER AT EZ
at amortised cost TRaE 33,369 39,292 3,038 20,316
APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 39. RO UTFRE

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2015.
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B RHASE AR AR 2014/15F

93



Financial Summary
BT E

The following is a summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the NTRASEABENEFEMRR I GAEEUNREERE
Group, prepared for the last five years, as extracted from the audited consolidated BEZHE e AEE  SERGEAYBESRE - AEE
financial statements of the Group. This summary does not form part of the audited FEAREIL B SRR 2 AR RS ©

financial statements.

RESULTS £

Year ended 31 March
BEZA=+—HLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-RF —E—mE T4 —E—=fF —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHIT FHIT FHBIT FHIT
Turnover B 1,780 1,350 784 15,955 16,636
Profit/(Loss) from operations SESE T (E518) 1,957 (5,589) (6,687) (8,060) (7,073)
Finance costs BE R AR (772) (1,247) (1,095) (960) (635)
Profit/(Loss) before taxation BrREATEF S (ER) 1,185 (6,836) (7,782) (9,020 (7,708)
Taxation sl (540) (537) - - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year REEZHRF(EE) 645 (7,373) (7,782) (9,020) (7,708)
Attributable to: LA AT RELR -
Owners of the Company VN/NCIEZE DN 655 (7,360) (7,771) (8,752) (7,708)
Non-controlling interests PR R (10) (13) (11) (268) -
645 (7,373) (7,782) (9,020) (7,708)

94 Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15



Financial Summary (Continued)

==
BT E (48)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENEE
At 31 March
R=B=+—8”
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E—RF —T—mF —T—=F T —C—F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Non-current assets EmEEE 43,762 43,145 24 75 554
Current assets MEEE 21,041 15,870 10,483 13,237 12,100
Deduct: DA
Current liabilities nEaRE 3,682 3,972 10,761 16,929 5,197
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/(AfE)FE 17,359 11,898 (278) (3,692) 6,903
Total assets less current WEERREEARE
liabilities 61,121 55,043 (254) (3,617) 7,457
Deduct: Pk
Non-current liabilities IEME AR 31,275 36,407 19,699 8,573 10,721
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8E)FE 29,846 18,636 (19,953) (12,190) (3,264)
BIRRIASEMAR AR 2014/15F#H
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Particulars of Properties
YIRS

Type Lease term

Properties held for investment BIEREWHE b Eidl HEH
Rooms 1101, 1102,1114 and 1115, R B ST IS 1999 5 Commercial Medium

Car Parking Space Nos. 168,169,199 110158 ~ 110258 ~ 111458 2 111558 [GES AR

and 200, No. 1999 Jingshajiang Road FORERIZE 168 5% « 169 5% * 199 57 & 200 %%

and Rooms 701,702,703 and 704, K& T8 5 198957 B RH& 701 5

Car Parking Space Nos. 129, 130,131 7025% « 70357 K& 704 55 KRB A7 58 1295 -

and 132 No. 1989 Jingshajiang Road, 1305% ~ 13157 & 18255 ©

Putuo District, Shanghai,

the PRC

26 Thiz Technology Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15
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